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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of  
Hero MotoCorp Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hero 
MotoCorp Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding 
Company’ or the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the 
Group”) and its associates, which comprise the consolidated 
balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and 
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of 
such subsidiaries and associate as were audited by the other 
auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its 

associates as at March 31, 2020, of its consolidated profit and 
other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity 
and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group and its associates in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by 
us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other 
auditors referred to in sub paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” 
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

Sr. 
No. The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Government Grants
(Refer note 3.5 and 4(f) to the consolidated financial 
statements)
The Company obtains various grants from Government 
authorities in connection with manufacturing and sales 
of two wheelers. There are certain specific conditions and 
approval requirement attached to the grants.
Management evaluates, at the end of each reporting period, 
whether the Company has complied with the relevant 
conditions attached to each grant and whether there is a 
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received, in 
order to determine the timing and amounts of grants to be 
recognised in the financial statements.
We identified the recognition of government grants as a 
key audit matter because of the significance of the amount 
of grants and due to significant management judgement 
involved in assessing whether the conditions attached to 
grants have been met and whether there is reasonable 
assurance that grants will be received.

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the following audit 
procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence:
•  assessed the appropriateness of the accounting policy for government 

grants as per the relevant accounting standard.
•  evaluated the design and implementation of the Company’s key internal 

financial controls over recognition of government grants and tested the 
operating effectiveness of such controls on selected transactions;

•  inspected, on a sample basis, documents relating to the grants given 
by the various government authorities and identifying the specific 
conditions and approval requirements attached to the respective 
grants;

•  evaluated the basis of management’s judgement regarding fulfilment 
of conditions attached to the grants and reasonable assurance that 
grants will be received. This included examining, on a sample basis, 
the terms of the underlying documentation, correspondence with the 
government authorities and whether corresponding sales were made 
in respect of such grant.;

•  assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the disclosures made in 
accordance with the relevant accounting standard;
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Sr. 
No. The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

2. Capitalisation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Capital work-in-progress) during the 
year of the Chittoor plant
(Refer note 3.9, 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial 
statements)
The Company had commenced the project of setting up of a 
new manufacturing plant at Chittoor in the state of Andhra 
Pradesh. During the year, the Company has capitalised 
property, plant and equipment amounting to Rs 621.96 crore. 
Commercial production from such capitalised property, 
plant and equipment commenced from 19 March 2020.
With regard to the capitalisation, management evaluates the 
costs incurred and applies judgement to identify costs that 
are eligible for capitalisation and consequent allocation to 
specific class of property, plant and equipment. Judgement is 
also involved in determining when the plant/ portion of the 
plant is ready for use as intended by the management and 
qualifies for capitalisation.
We identified the capitalisation of costs incurred for 
construction of Chittoor plant as key audit matter due to the 
significance of the capital expenditure, risk of inappropriate 
timing of capitalisation and risk that the elements of costs 
are inappropriately capitalised or classified in accordance 
with the relevant standard.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following audit 
procedures in this area, among others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence:
•  assessed the appropriateness of the accounting policy for property, 

plant and equipment as per the relevant accounting standard;
•  evaluated the design and implementation of the Company’s key internal 

financial controls over property, plant and equipment (including 
capital work in progress), particularly in respect of timing, amount 
and classification of the costs capitalised and tested the operating 
effectiveness of such controls on selected transactions;

•  on a sample basis, we;
  inspected the approvals for the costs incurred;
   agreed direct and indirect costs capitalised with underlying 

supporting documents to ascertain the nature of costs;
   evaluated whether the costs incurred meet the criteria for 

capitalisation in accordance with the relevant standard;
   evaluated other costs debited to Statement of Profit and Loss to 

ascertain whether these should have been capitalised;
   evaluated whether the costs capitalised are appropriately classified 

in accordance with the relevant standard;
•  evaluated the basis for timing of capitalisation, including inspection of 

assessment report provided by third party technical experts;
•  assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the disclosures made in 

accordance with the relevant accounting standard;

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 
THEREON
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors 
are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 
holding Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit 
report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENT’S AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors 
are responsible for the preparation and presentation of 
these consolidated financial statements in term of the 

requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and 
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
including its associates in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of 
the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group and of its associates are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Management and 
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respective Management and Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associates are 
responsible for assessing the ability of each company to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
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related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group and of its associates is responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of each company.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF 
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls 
with reference to the consolidated financial statements 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls 
based on our audit.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Management and 
Board of Directors.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and 
Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparation of consolidated financial 

statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group and its 
associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information of such entities or business 
activities within the Group and its associates to express 
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial information of 
such entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors. 
For the other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audits 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for 
our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are 
further described in para (a) of the section titled ‘Other 
Matters’ in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with 
the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred 
to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of 
the Holding Company and such other entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

OTHER MATTERS
(a)  We did not audit the financial statements / financial 

information of six subsidiaries, whose financial 
statements/ financial information reflect total assets 
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 1,130.65 crore 
as at March 31, 2020, total revenues (before consolidation 
adjustments) of Rs. 1,088.07 crore and net cash outflows 
(before consolidation adjustments) amounting to 
Rs. 33.91 crore for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. 
The consolidated financial statements also include the 
Group’s share of net loss (and other comprehensive 
income) (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 
77.41 crore for the year ended March 31, 2020, in respect 
of an associate, whose financial statements/financial 
information have not been audited by us. These financial 
statements/financial information have been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us 
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries 
and associate, and our report in terms of sub-section 
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiaries and associate is based solely on 
the audit reports of the other auditors.

  Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside 
India whose financial statements and other financial 
information have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in their 
respective countries and which have been audited 
by other auditors under generally accepted auditing 
standards applicable in their respective countries. 
The Holding Company’s management has converted the 
financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside 
India from accounting principles generally accepted 
in their respective countries to accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. We have audited these 
conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s 
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the 
balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside 
India is based on the report of other auditors and the 
conversion adjustments prepared by the management of 
the Holding Company and audited by us.

  Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and 
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters 
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the 
reports of the other auditors.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
A.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 

our audit and on the consideration of reports of the 
other auditors on separate financial statements of such 
subsidiaries and associates as were audited by other 
auditors, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we 
report, to the extent applicable, that:

 a)  We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements.

 b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept 
so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the reports of the other auditors.

 c)  The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act.

 e)  On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company and the reports 
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies 
and associate companies incorporated in India, 
none of the directors of the Group companies 
and its associate companies incorporated in 
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act.

 f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of 
the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and 
associate companies incorporated in India and the 
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operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

B.  With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on 
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and 
associates, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

 i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2020 
on the consolidated financial position of the Group 
and its associates. Refer Note 36 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

 ii.  According to the information and explanation given 
to us, the Group and its associates did not have any 
material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts during the year 
ended March 31, 2020.

 iii.  According to the information and explanation 
given to us, there has been no delay in transferring 
amounts to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary 
company and associate companies incorporated in 
India during the year ended March 31, 2020;

 iv.  The disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements regarding holdings as well as dealings 

in specified bank notes during the period from 
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 have 
not been made in the financial statements since 
they do not pertain to the financial year ended 
March 31, 2020.

C.  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s 
report under section 197(16):

  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on the reports 
of the statutory auditor of such associate company 
incorporated in India which was not audited by us, 
the remuneration paid during the current year by the 
Holding Company, its subsidiary company and associate 
companies to its directors is in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration 
paid to any director by the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary company and associate companies in India is 
not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 
of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which 
are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
Partner

Place: Membership No.: 095037
Date: June 9, 2020 UDIN: 20095037AAAABP4238 
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference 
to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

OPINION
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 
March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
of Hero MotoCorp Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Holding Company”) and such companies incorporated in 
India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary 
company, and its associate companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies 
incorporated in India which are its subsidiary company and its 
associate companies, have, in all material respects, adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated 
financial statements and such internal financial controls 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the 
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated 
financial statements criteria established by such companies 
considering the essential components of such internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

MANAGEMENT’S AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS
The respective Company’s management and the Board of 
Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated 
financial statements based on the criteria established 
by the respective Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Act”).

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 
Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 

with reference to the consolidated financial statements. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated 
financial statements were established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to the consolidated financial statements 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and 
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor of the 
relevant associate company in terms of their report referred 
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated 
financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
WITH REFERENCE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
the consolidated financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements.

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
on the consolidated financial statements of Hero MotoCorp Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to the consolidated financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference 
to the consolidated financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
with reference to the consolidated financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

OTHER MATTERS
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial 
statements insofar as it relates to one associate company, 
which is a company incorporated in India, is based on 
the corresponding report of the auditor of such company 
incorporated in India.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Manish Gupta
Partner

Place: Membership No.: 095037
Date: June 9, 2020 UDIN: 20095037AAAABP4238 



Particulars Note  As at
March 31, 2020

 As at
March 31, 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5  5,786.24  4,792.50
(b) Capital work-in-progress 6  204.64  384.85
(c) Right of use of assets 7  518.79  -
(d) Other intangible assets 7A  167.90  159.86
(e) Intangible assets under development 8  186.69  187.97
(f) Equity accounted investments in associates 9A  2,098.34  1,705.89
(g) Financial assets
 (i) Investments 9B  1,551.18  1,234.06
 (ii) Loans 10  67.68  60.12
 (iii) Others 11  -  33.82
(h) Income tax assets (net) 12  321.74  855.62
(i) Other non-current assets 13  121.67  676.46
Total Non-Current Assets  11,024.87  10,091.15
Current assets
(a) Inventories 14  1,282.32  1,249.53
(b) Financial assets
 (i) Investments 9B  4,709.12  3,173.88
 (ii) Trade receivables 15  1,511.91  2,745.11
 (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 16  305.31  208.12
 (iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 17  130.10  95.78
 (v) Loans 10  23.75  25.08
 (vi) Others 11  364.05  654.19
(c) Other current assets 13  322.64  261.52
Total Current Assets  8,649.20  8,413.21
Total Assets  19,674.07  18,504.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 18  39.95  39.95
(b) Other equity 19  14,366.33  13,080.46
Total Equity attributable to owners of the Company  14,406.28  13,120.41
Non-controlling interests 20  140.60  116.11
Total Equity  14,546.88  13,236.52
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 21  44.02  124.84
 (ii) Lease Liabilities 7  207.62  -
(b) Provisions 22  123.90  120.94
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23  472.58  612.88
Total Non-Current Liabilities  848.12  858.66
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 21  165.88  183.68
 (ii) Lease Liabilities 7  33.46  -
 (iii) Trade payables 24
 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  8.60 -
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  3,119.02  3,438.24
 (iv) Other financial liabilities 25  260.96  226.73
(b) Other current liabilities 26  531.46  500.82
(c) Provisions 22  159.69  59.71
Total Current Liabilities  4,279.07  4,409.18
Total Equity and Liabilities  19,674.07  18,504.36
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financials 
statements

1-47

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For B S R & Co. LLP Hero MotoCorp Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Pawan Munjal M. Damodaran
No.: 101248W/W-100022 Chairman, Managing Director & CEO Chairman Audit Committee

DIN: 00004223 DIN: 02106990

Manish Gupta Niranjan Kumar Gupta Pradeep Dinodia Neerja Sharma
Partner Chief Financial Officer Non-Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 095037 DIN: 00027995
UDIN: 20095037AAAABP4238
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 9, 2020 Date: June 9, 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Note  For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 For the year ended
March 31, 2019

INCOME
Revenue from operations 27  29,255.32  33,972.23
Other income 28  730.56  686.73
Total Income  29,985.88  34,658.96
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 29  20,004.29  23,503.46
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 30  (173.34)  (59.04)
Excise duty on sale of goods  1.35  1.41
Employee benefits expenses 31  1,889.32  1,778.03
Finance costs 32  46.64  37.18
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 5, 7 & 7A  845.76  624.44
Other expenses 33  3,472.78  3,729.94
Total expenses  26,086.80  29,615.42
Profit before share of profit/(loss)of associates, exceptional items and tax 3,899.08 5,043.54
Profit/(loss) from associates
Share in profit/(loss) of associates, net of tax  34.63  60.76

 34.63  60.76
Profit before tax and exceptional items  3,933.71  5,104.30
Exception item–NCCD income 45  737.48  -
Exception item–VRS expenses 47  (60.11)  -
Profit before tax  4,611.08  5,104.30
Tax expense 34
Current tax  1,096.79  1,608.81
Deferred tax  (145.12)  29.14
Total tax expense  951.67  1,637.95
Net profit after taxes and share of profit/(loss) of associates  3,659.41  3,466.35
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:-
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  (42.59)  (27.43)
Income tax effect  10.68  9.58
Share of Other comprehensive income of associate, to the extent not be reclassified 
to profit or loss

 (0.55)  (0.58)

 (32.46)  (18.43)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:-
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations  19.01  5.30
Income tax effect  (4.84)  (1.85)

 14.17  3.45
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax  (18.29)  (14.98)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  3,641.12  3,451.37

Net Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company  3,638.11  3,444.09
- Non-controlling interests  21.30  22.26

 3,659.41  3,466.35
Other Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company  (23.61)  (16.32)
- Non-controlling interests  5.32  1.34

 (18.29)  (14.98)
Total Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company  3,614.50  3,427.77
- Non-controlling interests  26.62  23.60

 3,641.12  3,451.37
 Earnings per share (Nominal Value of ` 2 each) in ` 35
 (a) Basic  182.15  172.45
 (b) Diluted  182.15  172.44
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financials 
statements

1-47

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For B S R & Co. LLP Hero MotoCorp Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Pawan Munjal M. Damodaran
No.: 101248W/W-100022 Chairman, Managing Director & CEO Chairman Audit Committee

DIN: 00004223 DIN: 02106990

Manish Gupta Niranjan Kumar Gupta Pradeep Dinodia Neerja Sharma
Partner Chief Financial Officer Non-Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 095037 DIN: 00027995
UDIN: 20095037AAAABP4238
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 9, 2020 Date: June 9, 2020



Hero MotoCorp Ltd.

208

Annual Report 2019-20

(Amount in crore of INR)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Profit after tax and share in profit/(loss) of associates  3,659.41  3,466.35
 Adjustments for:
 Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense  845.76  624.44
  Tax expense  951.67  1,637.95
  Loss on property, plant and equipments sold/discarded  8.66  6.47
  Finance cost  46.64  37.18
  Employee Stock Compensation Cost  10.15  6.55
  Loss allowance on trade receivables  53.04 -

 1,915.92  2,312.61
 Less: Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost  277.77  288.03
  Dividend income  48.27  71.76
  Profit on sale of investments  136.07  144.61
  Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss  221.78  175.11
  Share of profit in associates  34.63  60.19
  Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments  0.37  0.66
  Foreign currency translation (net)  (19.01)  (9.91)

 699.88  730.45
 Operating profit before working capital changes  4,875.45  5,048.51
 Changes in working capital:
 Adjustment for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
 Inventories  (32.79)  (286.86)
 Trade receivables  1,180.16  (1,318.14)
 Loans–Current  1.33  3.42
 Loans–Non-Current  (7.56)  (14.28)
 Other financial assets  290.71  (111.04)
 Other current assets  (64.36)  (49.41)
 Other non-current assets  42.84  46.88

 1,410.33  (1,729.43)
 Adjustment for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
 Trade payables  (310.63)  62.98
 Other financial liabilities–Current  5.32  2.07
 Other current liabilities  30.64  (264.13)
 Current provisions  56.84  (19.01)
 Non-current provisions  2.96  1.76

 (214.87)  (216.34)
 Cash generated from operating activities  6,070.91  3,102.74
 Less: Direct taxes paid (net of refund)  552.78  2,070.46
 Net cash generated from operating activities  5,518.13  1,032.27
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and 

capital work-in-progress including capital advances
 (1,274.50)  (979.56)

 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  (13.30)  4.17
 Deposits made  (4.48)  (22.65)
 Sale of investments  47,232.41  42,020.45
 Purchase of investments (49,353.10) (39,456.26)
 Dividend income received from associates  19.99  -
 Investment in associates  248.37  (628.30)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019

 Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost  277.20  288.03
 Dividend income  48.27  71.76
 Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities  (2,819.14)  1,297.63
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Interest paid  (46.67)  (36.93)
 Payment of lease liabilities  (114.95)  -
 Dividend paid  (1,957.04)  (1,928.60)
 Tax on dividend  (401.40)  (390.01)
 Additions to minority interest  17.47  17.55
 Proceeds from issue of equity share capital  0.12  1.98
 Repayment of non-current  borrowings  (80.82)  (24.79)
 Proceeds/Repayment from current borrowings  (18.51)  108.40
 Net cash (used) in financing activities  (2,601.80)  (2,252.40)
D.  INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

(A+B+C)
 97.19  77.51

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  208.12 130.61
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  305.31 208.12

Movement of borrowings Non-current
borrowings

Current
borrowings

(including
current

maturities)

Interest
expense on

financial
liabilities

Total

As on March 31, 2019 124.84 186.66 0.20 311.70
Cash flows (80.82) (18.51) (46.67) (146.00)
Non-cash:
Interest Expenses - - 46.64 46.64
As on March 31, 2020 44.02 168.15 0.17 212.34
Notes: 
i. The consolidated statement of cash flow has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS - 7 - ’Statement of Cash Flows’. 

ii. Refer note 33 for the disclosure related to corporate social  responsibility expense. 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statement 1-47.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For B S R & Co. LLP Hero MotoCorp Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Pawan Munjal M. Damodaran
No.: 101248W/W-100022 Chairman, Managing Director & CEO Chairman Audit Committee

DIN: 00004223 DIN: 02106990

Manish Gupta Niranjan Kumar Gupta Pradeep Dinodia Neerja Sharma
Partner Chief Financial Officer Non-Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 095037 DIN: 00027995
UDIN: 20095037AAAABP4238
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 9, 2020 Date: June 9, 2020
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(Amount in crore of INR)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2020

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Number of shares Amount

Balance as at March 31, 2018  199,711,455  39.94
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Issue of equity shares under employee share option plan (# ` 30,858) (Note 41)  15,429  #

Balance as at March 31, 2019  199,726,884  39.95
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Issue of equity shares under employee share option plan (# ` 24,968) (Note 41)  12,484  #

Balance as at March 31, 2020  199,739,368  39.95

B. OTHER EQUITY*

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Exchange 
differences 

in 
translating 

the financial 
statements 

of foreign 
operations

Total 
attributable 

to the 
owners of 
Company

Attributable 
to non-

controlling 
interest

Total Capital 
reserve

Securities 
premium

General 
reserve

Share 
options 

outstanding 
account

Retained 
earnings

Balance as at March 31, 2018  #  8.30  2,676.34  6.74  9,247.01  (6.87)  11,931.52  93.21  12,024.73
Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  3,444.09  -  3,444.09  22.26  3,466.35
Addition during the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  17.55  17.55
Other comprehensive income for 
the year, net of income tax

 -  -  -  -  (18.43)  2.11  (16.32)  1.34  (14.98)

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year

 -  -  -  - 3,425.66  2.11  3,427.77  41.15  3,468.92

Transaction with owners, 
recorded directly in equity
Charge against share-based 
payments

 -  -  -  6.55  -  -  6.55  -  6.55

Transferred to securities 
premium on issue of shares

 -  3.70  -  (3.70)  -  -  -  -  -

Payment of dividends  -  -  -  -  (1,897.35)  -  (1,897.35)  (18.25)  (1,915.60)
Tax on dividend  -  -  -  -  (390.01)  -  (390.01)  -  (390.01)
Issue of equity shares under 
employee share option plan

 -  1.98  -  -  -  -  1.98  -  1.98

Balance as at March 31, 2019  #  13.98  2,676.34  9.59 10,385.31  (4.76)  13,080.46  116.11  13,196.57
Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  3,638.11  -  3,638.11  21.30  3,659.41
Addition during the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  17.47  17.47
Other comprehensive income for 
the year, net of income tax

 -  -  -  -  (32.46)  8.85  (23.61)  5.32  (18.29)

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year

 -  -  -  -  3,605.65  8.85  3,614.50  44.09  3,658.59
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Exchange 
differences 

in 
translating 

the financial 
statements 

of foreign 
operations

Total 
attributable 

to the 
owners of 
Company

Attributable 
to non-

controlling 
interest

Total Capital 
reserve

Securities 
premium

General 
reserve

Share 
options 

outstanding 
account

Retained 
earnings

Transaction with owners, 
recorded directly in equity
Charge against share-based 
payments

 -  -  -  10.15  -  -  10.15  -  10.15

Transferred to securities 
premium on issue of shares

 -  4.30  (4.30)  -  -  -  -  -

Payment of dividends  -  -  -  -  (1,937.44)  -  (1,937.44)  (19.60)  (1,957.04)
Tax on dividend  -  -  -  -  (401.46)  -  (401.46)  -  (401.46)
Issue of equity shares under 
employee share option plan

 -  0.12  -  -  -  -  0.12  -  0.12

Balance as at March 31, 2020  #  18.40  2,676.34  15.44 11,652.06  4.09  14,366.34  140.60  14,506.93

*Purpose of each reserve within Other Equity has been disclosed under Note 19.
#On shares forfeited (in absolute ` 4,250) and share premium account on forfeited share reissued (in absolute ` 25,500).

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financials statements 1-47.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For B S R & Co. LLP Hero MotoCorp Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Pawan Munjal M. Damodaran
No.: 101248W/W-100022 Chairman, Managing Director & CEO Chairman Audit Committee

DIN: 00004223 DIN: 02106990

Manish Gupta Niranjan Kumar Gupta Pradeep Dinodia Neerja Sharma
Partner Chief Financial Officer Non-Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 095037 DIN: 00027995
UDIN: 20095037AAAABP4238
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 9, 2020 Date: June 9, 2020
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Notes forming part of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
  Hero MotoCorp Limited (the “Company” or the 

“Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (collectively 
called as “Group”) and its associates are engaged in the 
manufacturing and selling of motorised two-wheelers, 
spare parts and related services along with providing 
non-banking financial services. The Company is a public 
company domiciled and incorporated in India under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on January 19, 
1984. The Company’s registered office and principal 
place of business is The Grand Plaza, Plot No. 2, Nelson 
Mandela Road, Vasant Kunj – Phase II, New Delhi – 
110070, India. The shares of the Company are listed on 
two stock exchanges in India i.e. National Stock Exchange 
(NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

  The financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2020 were approved by the Board of Directors 
and authorised for issue on June 09, 2020.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
2.1 Statement of Compliance
  The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under 
section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other 
relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Basis of measurement
  The financial statements have been prepared on 

the historical cost basis except for certain financial 
instruments, net defined benefit asset/ liability and 
liabilities for equity settled share based payment 
arrangement that are measured at fair values at the end 
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting 
policies below.

  These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee 
(INR), which is also the Holding Company’s functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the 
nearest crore, upto two decimals unless otherwise stated.

2.3 Operating Cycle
  Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Group 

and its associates, the normal time between acquisition 
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, 
the Group and its associates has determined its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its 
assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.4 Basis of consolidation
  The consolidated financial statements incorporate 

the financial statements of the Company and entities 
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved 
when the Company:

 • has power over the investee;

 •  is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee; and

 • has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

  The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an 
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of 
control listed above.

  When the Company has less than a majority of the voting 
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when 
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical 
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee 
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts 
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the 
Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to 
give it power, including:

 •  the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights 
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the 
other vote holders;

 •  Potential voting rights held by the Company, other 
vote holders or other parties;

 •  rights arising from other contractual 
arrangements; and

 •  any additional facts and circumstances that indicate 
that the Company has, or does not have, the current 
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time 
that decisions need to be made, including voting 
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

  Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed 
off during the year are included in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss from the date the Company 
gains control until the date when the Company ceases to 
control the subsidiary.

  Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive 
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and 
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive 
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of 
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even 
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a 
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring 
their accounting policies into line with the Group’s 
accounting policies.
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 Non-controlling interests (NCI)
  NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the 

acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition.

  Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary 
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transactions.

 Loss of control
  When the group loses control over a subsidiary, it 

derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, 

and any related NCI and other components of equity. 
Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is 
measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. 
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss.

  All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, 
expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group are eliminated in full 
on consolidation.

  Following subsidiary companies have been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Name of entity Relationship

Country of 
Incorporation and 
principal place of 
business

Ownership held by

% of Holding and voting power 
either directly or indirectly 

through subsidiary as at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

HMCL (NA) Inc. (till November 5, 2019) * Subsidiary United States of 
America

Company - 100%

HMCL Americas Inc. Subsidiary United States of 
America

Company 100% 100%

HMC MM Auto Limited Subsidiary India Company 60% 60%
HMCL Netherlands B.V. Subsidiary Netherlands Company 100% 100%
HMCL Colombia SAS Subsidiary Colombia HMCL Netherlands BV 68% 68%
HMCL Niloy Bangladesh Limited Subsidiary Bangladesh HMCL Netherlands BV 55% 55%
Hero TechCenter Germany GmbH Subsidiary Germany Company 100% 100%

  * During the current year ended March 31, 2020, HMCL (N.A) Inc. ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. November 6, 2019 pursuant to its dissolution 
vide order dated December 3, 2019 of the State of Delaware.

2.5 Investments in associates
  An associate is an entity over which the Group has 

significant influence. Significant influence is the power 
to participate in the financial and operating policy 
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint 
control over those policies.

  The results and assets and liabilities of associates are 
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements 
using the equity method of accounting, except when the 
investment, or, a portion thereof, is classified as held for 
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with 
Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment in 
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated 
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to 
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income of the associate. Distributions 
received from an associate reduce the carrying amount 
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses 
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that 
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, 
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in 
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its 
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised 
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf 
of the associate.

  An investment in an associate is accounted for using 
the equity method from the date on which the investee 
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in 
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over 
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as 
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount 
of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of 
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities 
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is 
recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the 
period in which the investment is acquired.

  After application of the equity method of accounting, 
the Group determines whether there is any objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the net 
investment in an associate and that event (or events) has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the 
net investment that can be reliably estimated. If there 
exists such an objective evidence of impairment, then it 
is necessary to recognise impairment loss with respect 
to the Group’s investment in an associate.

  When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the 
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment 
in accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as 



Hero MotoCorp Ltd.

214

Annual Report 2019-20

Notes forming part of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount 
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of 
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment 
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount 
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment 
loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the 
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment 
subsequently increases.

  The Group discontinues the use of the equity method 
from the date when the investment ceases to be an 
associate, or when the investment is classified as held 
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the 
former associate and the retained interest is a financial 
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair 
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its 
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with Ind 
AS 109. The difference between the carrying amount 
of the associate at the date the equity method was 
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest 
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the 
associate is included in the determination of the gain or 
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group 
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or 

joint venture on the same basis as would be required 
if that associate had directly disposed of the related 
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income by that 
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit 
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, 
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to 
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the 
equity method is discontinued.

  When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an 
associate but the Group continues to use the equity 
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the 
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been 
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to 
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss 
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of 
the related assets or liabilities.

  When a group entity transacts with an associate of the 
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions 
with the associates are recognised in the Group’s 
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of 
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

  Following associate companies have been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Name of entity Relationship

Country of 
Incorporation and 
principal place of 
business

Ownership held by

% of Holding and voting power either directly 
or indirectly through subsidiary as at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Hero FinCorp Limited Associate India Company 41.19% 41.18%
Ather Energy Private Limited Associate India Company 35.10% 32.31%
Erik Buell Racing Inc. Associate United States of 

America
HMCL (NA) Inc. - Equity holding 49.2% 

Voting rights 43.9%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Revenue Recognition
  Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of 

promised products or services to customers for an 
amount that reflects the consideration which the 
Company expects to receive in exchange for those 
products or services. Revenue excludes taxes or duties 
collected on behalf of the government

 •  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when 
control of goods are transferred to the buyer 
which is generally on dispatch for domestic sales 
and on dispatch/ delivery on local port in India 
for export sales

 •  Revenue from providing services is recognised 
in the accounting period in which services are 
rendered. Revenue from service is based on number 
of services provided to the end of reporting period 

as a proportion of the total  number of services 
to be provided:

  Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, 
which is the consideration, adjusted for volume 
discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions 
and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with 
the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected 
from customers.

  A liability is recognised where payments are received 
from customers before transferring control of the goods 
being sold or providing services to the customer.

  The Group and its associates disaggregates revenue from 
contracts with customers by nature of goods and service.

  Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive 
payment is established. Interest income is recognised 
using the effective interest method.
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3.2 Leasing
  Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term 

as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any 
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such 
option is reasonably certain. The Group and its associates 
makes an assessment on the expected lease term on 
a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether 
it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or 
terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating 
the lease term, the Group and its associates considers 
factors such as any significant leasehold improvements 
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the 
termination of the lease and the importance of the 
underlying asset to the Group’s operations taking into 
account the location of the underlying asset and the 
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in 
future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease 
term reflects the current economic circumstances. 
After considering current and future economic 
conditions, the Group and its associates have concluded 
that no changes are required to lease period relating to 
the existing lease contracts.

 The Group as lessee
  The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases 

for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether 
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the 
contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the 
Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) 
the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the 
Group recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value 
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

  Certain lease arrangements includes the options to 
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes 
these options when it is reasonably certain that they 
will be exercised.

  The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, 
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 

costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

  Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the 
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying 
asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable 
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual 
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash 
flows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which 
the asset belongs.

  The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at 
the present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 
in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the 
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile 
of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with 
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use 
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether 
it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

  Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately 
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing cash flows.

 Transition
  Effective April 1, 2019, the Group adopted Ind AS 

116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease 
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified 
retrospective approach.

  Consequently, the Group recorded the lease liability 
at the present value of the remaining lease payments 
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and 
the right of use asset at an amount equal to the lease 
liability. The Group has used discounted rate as the 
Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial 
application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended 
March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted 
and therefore will continue to be reported under the 
accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report 
for year ended March 31, 2019. There is no impact on 
retained earnings as on 1 April 2019.

  The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit 
before tax, profit for the year and earnings per share. 
Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from 
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operating activities and an increase in cash outflows 
from financing activities on account of lease payments.

  The following is the summary of practical expedients 
elected on initial application:

 1.  Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases 
of similar assets in similar economic environment 
with a similar end date

 2.  Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use 
assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 
months of lease term on the date of initial application

 3.  Excluded the initial direct costs from the 
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of 
initial application.

 4.  Applied the practical expedient to grandfather 
the assessment of which transactions are leases. 
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to 
contracts that were previously identified as leases 
under Ind AS 17.

  The weighted average incremental borrowing rate has 
been applied to lease liabilities.

 Refer note 7A for other disclosures.

3.3 Foreign currencies
  In preparing the financial statements of the Group and 

its associates, transactions in currencies other than the 
Group’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are 
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting 
period, monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that 
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

  Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised 
in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in 
which they arise.

  For the purposes of presenting these consolidated 
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the 
Group’s foreign operations are translated into Indian 
Rupees using exchange rates prevailing at the end of 
each reporting period. Income and expense items are 
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, 
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that 
period, in which case exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if 

any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity (and attributed to non-controlling 
interests as appropriate).

  On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal 
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, 
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary 
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal 
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate 
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained 
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange 
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that 
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are 
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

  In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a 
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does 
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, 
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange 
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests 
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other 
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or 
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing 
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate 
share of the accumulated exchange differences is 
reclassified to profit or loss.

3.4 Borrowing costs
  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets 
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

  Interest income earned on the temporary investment 
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalisation.

  All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.5 Government grants
  Government grants are not recognised until there is 

reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with 
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants 
will be received.

  Government grants are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in 
which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs 
if any, for which the grants are intended to compensate.
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3.6 Employee benefits
 Defined contribution plans
  A defined contribution plan is a post-employment 

benefit plan under which the company pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and will have no 
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 
Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised 
as an expense when employees have rendered service 
entitling them to the contributions.

 Defined benefit plans
  For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits 

is determined using the projected unit credit method, 
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end 
of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, 
comprising actuarial gains and losses, and the return 
on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected 
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit 
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period 
in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in 
other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in 
retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement 
of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by applying 
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs 
are categorised as follows:

 •  service cost (including current service cost, 
past service cost, as well as gains and losses or 
curtailments and settlements);

 • net interest expense or income; and

 • re-measurement

  The Group presents the first two components of defined 
benefit costs in the statement of profit and loss in the line 
item ‘Employee  benefits expenses’.

  The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the 
balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in 
the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting 
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any 
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from 
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

 Short-term employee benefits
  Liabilities recognised in respect of wages and salaries 

and other short-term employee benefits are measured at 
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be 
paid in exchange for the related service and are expensed 
as the related services are provided.

 Other long-term employee benefits
  Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term 

employee benefits such as long term service awards 

and compensated absences are measured at the present 
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to 
be made by the Group in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method carried 
out at the year end. Re-measurement gain or losses are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the 
period in which they arise.

3.7 Share-based payment arrangements
  Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are 

measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at 
the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the 
fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are 
set out in note 41.

  The fair value determined at the grant date of the 
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on 
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on 
the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will 
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. 
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its 
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to 
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, 
if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised 
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share 
option’s outstanding account.

3.8 Taxation
  Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax 

currently payable and deferred tax.

 Current tax
  The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for 

the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as 
reported in the consolidated statement of profit and 
loss because of items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are 
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is 
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the 
end of the reporting period.

 Deferred tax
  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the consolidated financial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally 
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences 
can be utilised.
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  Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised 
if the temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition (other than in a business combination) of 
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither 
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, 
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
of goodwill. In case of a history of recent losses, the group 
recognises a deferred tax assets only to the extent that it 
has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is 
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets 
can be realised.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 
to be recovered.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

  The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets 
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of 
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they related to income taxes levied by 
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and 
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

  Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss, except when they relate to items 
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity respectively.

  The Holding Company elected to exercise the option 
permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 
1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) 
Act, 2019. Accordingly, the Holding Company has 
recognised Provision for Income tax for the year ended 
March 31, 2020 and re-measured its deferred tax assets 
/liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said section. 
The impact of this change has been recognised during 
the year ended March 31, 2020.

3.9 Property, plant and equipment
  Property, plant and equipment (including furniture, 

fixtures, vehicles, etc.) held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative 
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, 
duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. Freehold land 
is not depreciated.

  Property, plant and equipment in the course of 
construction for production, supply or administrative 
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised 
impairment loss. Cost includes items directly attributable 
to the construction or acquisition of the item of property, 
plant and equipment, and, for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the 
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified 
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and 
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. 
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as-other 
property assets, commences when the assets are ready 
for their intended use.

  Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate 
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company 
and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. 
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as 
a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of 
profit and loss during the reporting period in which 
they are incurred.

  Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes 
and other incidental expenses.

  Depreciation is recognised on the cost of assets (other 
than freehold land and properties under construction) 
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the 
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual 
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes 
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

  Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis at the 
straight line method as per estimated economic useful 
lives prescribed in the Schedule II to the Act other than 
assets covered under employee benefits schemes which 
are depreciated over a period of 5 years and moulds and 
dies which are depreciated over a period of 3-8 years 
grouped under property, plant and equipment.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
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expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined 
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
Statement of profit and loss.

3.10 Intangible assets
 Intangible assets acquired separately
  Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are 

acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life 
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes 
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are 
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses.

  Internally-generated intangible assets - research 
and development expenditure

  Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an 
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

  An internally-generated intangible asset arising from 
development (or from the development phase of an 
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the 
following have been demonstrated:

 •  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible 
asset so that it will be available for use or sale

 •  the intention to complete the intangible asset and 
use or sell it;

 • the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

 •  how the intangible asset will generate probable 
future economic benefits;

 •  the availability of adequate technical, financial and 
other resources to complete the development and 
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

 •  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure 
attributable to the intangible asset during 
its development.

  The amount initially recognised for internally-generated 
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure 
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first 
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no 
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, 
development expenditure is recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred.

  Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated 
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 
on the same basis as intangible assets that are 
acquired separately.

  An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of 
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset, and are recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss when the asset is derecognised.

 Useful lives of intangible assets
  Intangible assets, comprising of software, expenditure 

on model fee, etc. incurred are amortised on a straight 
line method over a period of 5 years.

3.11  Impairment of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets

  At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews 
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that 
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of 
the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the 
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

  Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and 
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at least annually, and whenever 
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have 
not been adjusted.

  For impairment testing, assets that don’t generate 
independent cash flows are grouped together into cash 
generating units (CGU’s). Each CGU represents the 
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows that 
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or CGU’s.

  When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit to which 
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent 
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets 
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, 
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group 
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and 
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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  If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating 
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and 
loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, 
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior 
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

3.12 Inventories
  Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and 

net realisable value. Cost of inventories includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, 
production or conversion cost and other costs 
incurred in bringing them to their present location 
and condition. Costs of inventories are determined 
on a moving weighted average. Finished goods and 
work-in-progress include appropriate proportion of 
overheads. Net realisable value represents the estimated 
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of 
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

3.13 Provisions
  Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation.

  The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate 
of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the 
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows 
(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

 Warranties
  The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded 

when products are sold. These estimates are established 
using historical information on the nature, frequency 
and average cost of warranty claims and management 
estimates regarding possible future incidence based 
on corrective actions on product failures. The timing of 
outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise- 
being typically two to five years.

3.14 Financial instruments
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised 

when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through the statement 
of profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the 
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, 
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through the statement 
of profit and loss are recognised immediately in the 
statement of profit and loss.

3.15 Financial assets
  All recognised financial assets are subsequently 

measured in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the 
financial assets.

 Classification of financial assets
  Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt 
instruments that are designated as at fair value through 
the statement of profit and loss on initial recognition):

 •  the asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows; and

 •  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

  Debt instruments that meet the following conditions 
are subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (except for debt 
instruments that are designated as at fair value through 
the statement of profit and loss on initial recognition):

 •  the asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

 •  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.
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  Interest income is recognised in Statement of profit and 
loss for FVTOCI debt instruments.

  All other financial assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value.

 Effective interest method
  The effective interest method is a method of calculating 

the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid 
or received that form an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums 
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt 
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to 
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

  Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for 
debt instruments other than those financial assets 
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss and is included in the 
“Other income” line item.

  Financial assets at fair value through the statement 
of profit and loss (FVTPL)

  Investments in equity instruments are classified as at 
FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value 
in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments which are not held for trading.

  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost 
criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. 
In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised 
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as 
at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

  A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria 
or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may 
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if 
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces 
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that 
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or 
recognising the gains and losses on them on different 
bases. The Company has not designated any debt 
instrument as at FVTPL.

  Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at 
the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses 
arising on re-measurement recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or 
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in 
the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets 
at FVTPL is recognised when the Group’s right to receive 

the dividends is established, it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow 
to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery 
of part of cost of the investment and the amount of 
dividend can be measured reliably.

 Impairment of financial assets
  The Group applies the expected credit loss model 

for recognising impairment loss on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, 
trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive 
cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees 
not designated as at FVTPL.

  Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit 
losses with the respective risks of default occurring 
as the weights.

 Offsetting
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the 

net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and 
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable 
right to set off the amounts and it intents either to settle 
them on net basis or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

 Derecognition of financial assets
  The Group derecognises a financial asset when the 

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 
to another party.

3.16 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
 Classification as debt or equity
  Debt and equity instruments issued by Group are 

classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument.

 Equity instruments
  An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a 

residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities.

 Financial liabilities
  Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading 

and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at 
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting 
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities 
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are 
determined based on the effective interest method. 
Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of 
an asset is included under ‘Finance costs’
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  The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments (including all fees and points 
paid or received that form an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the 
financial liability.

  All financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method or at FVTPL.

 Derecognition of financial liabilities
  The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and 

only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or have expired.

3.17 Derivative financial instruments
  The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial 

instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange 
rate risks, interest rate including foreign exchange 
forward contracts, option contracts, etc.

  Foreign currency derivatives are initially recognised at 
fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair 
value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting 
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and 
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the 
timing of the recognition in the statement of profit or 
loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship 
and the nature of the hedged item.

3.18 Cash flow statement
  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 

whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and 
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash 
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated based on the available information.

3.19 Earnings per share
  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the 

profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year/period.

  Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest 
and other charges to expense or income relating to the 
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 

earnings per share and the weighted average number 
of equity shares which could have been issued on the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
  A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but 

not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or 
a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated 
reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, 
but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of 
resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither 
recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
However, contingent assets are assessed continually and 
if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits 
will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in 
the period in which the change occurs.

3.21 Standards issued but not yet effective
  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new 

standard or amendments to the existing standards. 
There is no such notification which would have been 
applicable from April 1, 2020.

4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

  In the application of the Company accounting policies, 
which are described in note 3, the management of the 
Company are required to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

  The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised prospectively.

  The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty 
and critical judgements that the management has made 
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting 
policies and that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements:-

 Recoverability of intangible asset
  Capitalisation of cost in intangible assets under 

development is based on management’s judgement 
that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed 
and asset under development will generate economic 
benefits in future. Based on evaluations carried out, the 
Company’s management has determined that here are 
no factors which indicates that these assets have suffered 
any impairment loss.
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 Defined benefit plans
  The cost of the defined benefit plan and other 

post-employment benefits and the present value of such 
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. 
An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments 
in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates 
and future pension increases. Due to the complexities 
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a 
defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in 
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

 Provision and contingent liability
  On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending 

cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. 
For contingent losses that are considered probable, 
an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial 
statements. Contingent loss that are considered possible 
are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent 
liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the 
likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the 
financial statements. Contingent gain are not recognised 
until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are 
received or receivable.

 Useful lives of depreciable assets
  Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable 

assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2020 
management assessed that the useful lives represent 
the expected utility of the assets to the Company. 
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives 
as compared to previous year.

  Impairment of investment in equity instruments of 
subsidiary and associate companies

  During the year, the Company assessed the investment in 
equity instrument of subsidiary and associate companies 
carried at cost for impairment testing. Some of these 
companies are start-ups or are at early stage of their 
operations and are expected to generate positive cash 
flows in the future years. Detailed analysis has been 
carried out on the future projections and the Company 
is confident that the investments do not require 
any impairment.

 Government grant
  During the year, management has assessed the 

conditions attached to grants which have been met 
and has assessed whether the grants will be received 
or not. Basis assessment, the Group has recognised the 
government grants in the Statement of profit and loss.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold 
Land Buildings Plant and 

equipment

Furniture 
and 

fixtures
Vehicles Office 

equipment

Data 
Processing 
equipment

Total

Cost
At April 1, 2018  108.05  2,309.99  4,955.72  44.57  53.01  59.43  190.42  7,721.19
Additions  -  141.45  390.59  4.40  9.08  12.40  25.24  583.16
Disposals  -  0.98  72.00  0.15  5.29  0.66  3.16  82.24
Foreign currency translation 
reserve

 -  -  (5.95)  -  -  -  -  (5.95)

At March 31, 2019  108.05  2,450.46  5,268.36  48.82  56.80  71.17  212.50  8,216.16
Additions  78.42  544.92  1,076.50  9.41  14.73  13.25  29.22  1,766.45
Disposals  -  0.09  74.91  0.87  6.73  1.94  4.65  89.19
Less : Transition impact of Ind AS 
116 (Refer Note 3.2)

 -  86.68  36.43  -  0.12  -  -  123.23

Foreign currency translation 
reserve

 -  -  1.41  -  -  -  -  1.41

At March 31, 2020  186.47  2,908.61  6,234.93  57.36  64.68  82.48  237.07  9,771.60
Accumulated depreciation
At April 1, 2018  -  312.51  2,444.19  19.06  18.66  30.87  124.51  2,949.80
Depreciation expenses  -  73.14  431.65  4.24  5.63  8.85  24.13  547.64
Adjustments  -  0.34  65.00  0.13  3.20  0.58  3.01  72.26
Foreign currency translation 
reserve

 -  -  (1.52)  -  -  -  -  (1.52)

At March 31, 2019  -  385.31  2,809.32  23.17  21.09  39.14  145.63  3,423.66
Depreciation expenses  -  70.99  521.16  4.41  24.27  9.82  25.66  656.31
Disposals  -  0.09  67.89  0.76  4.42  1.84  4.34  79.34
Less: Transition impact of Ind AS 
116 (Refer Note 3.2)

 -  5.66  9.14  -  0.10  -  -  14.90

Foreign currency translation 
reserve

 -  -  (0.37)  -  -  -  -  (0.37)

At March 31, 2020  -  450.55  3,253.08  26.82  40.84  47.12  166.95  3,985.36
Net block
At March 31, 2019  108.05  2,065.15  2,459.04  25.65  35.71  32.03  66.88  4,792.50
At March 31, 2020  186.47  2,458.06  2,981.85  30.54  23.84  35.36  70.12  5,786.24

6. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
 As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Capital work-in-progress  204.64  384.85

 204.64  384.85

7. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Particulars  Leasedhold  

land right
 Right of  Use 

assets Total

Cost
Right of use assets as on April 1,  2019  248.46  290.40  538.86
Additions  28.79  21.50  50.29
Foreign Currency Translation reserve  -  (18.52)  (18.52)
At March 31, 2020  277.25  293.38  570.63
Accumulated amortisation
Amortisation expense during the year  3.44  51.16  54.60
Foreign Currency Translation reserve  -  (2.76)  (2.76)
At March 31, 2020  3.44  48.40  51.84
Net block
At March 31, 2020  273.81  244.98  518.79
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The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2020
Current lease liabilities  33.46
Non-current lease liabilities  207.62
Total  241.08

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 1,  2019 290.40
Additions 50.29
Payment of lease liabilities and finance cost accrued during the period (114.95)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  15.34
Total 241.08

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 on an 
undiscounted basis:
Particulars  Amount

Less than one year 45.62
One to five years 156.88
More than five years 176.13
Total 378.63

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet 
the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expenses recorded for short-term leases is ` 25.02 crore during year ended March 31, 2020.

7 A INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars
 Model fee/Product 

designs and 
development

 Computer 
software

 Technical know 
how/Export 

licences 
Total

Cost
At April 1, 2018  717.25  127.16  2,912.50  3,756.91
Additions  30.47  16.79  47.26
Foreign Currency Translation reserve  (0.29)  (0.29)
At March 31, 2019  747.43  143.95  2,912.50  3,803.88
Additions  117.35  25.74 -  143.09
Adjustments  -  0.04  -  0.04
Foreign Currency Translation reserve  (0.63)  (0.63)
At March 31, 2020  864.15  169.73  2,912.50  3,946.38
Accumulated amortisation
At April 1, 2018  586.59  81.66  2,899.09  3,567.34
Amortisation expenses  59.51  15.61  1.68  76.80
Less: Adjustments  (0.12)  -  (0.12)
At March 31, 2019  645.98  97.27  2,900.77  3,644.02
Amortisation expenses  116.80  16.35  1.69  134.84
Adjustments  -  0.01  0.01
Foreign Currency Translation reserve  (0.39)  (0.39)
At March 31, 2020  762.39  113.63  2,902.46  3,778.48
Net block
At March 31, 2019  101.45  46.68  11.73  159.86
At March 31, 2020  101.76  56.10  10.04  167.90
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
 As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Intangible assets under development  186.69  187.97
Total  186.69  187.97

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars #REF!

Balance as at April 1,  2019  269.93
Additions  21.50
Finance cost accrued during the period  31.27
Payment of lease liabilities  51.33
Foreign currency translation Reserve  (30.28)
Total  241.09

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 on an 
undiscounted basis:
Particulars  Amount

Less than one year  39.22
One to five years  89.33
More than five years  97.60
Total  226.15

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to 
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expenses recorded for short-term leases is ` 23.3 crore during year ended March 31, 2020.

9. INVESTMENTS
Units As at 
March 31, 

2020

Units As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current  Non-
current  Current  Non-

current 
9A. Equity accounted investment in 

Associates
Investment in equity instruments
Unquoted Investments
Investment in Associates (carrying 
amount determined using equity 
method of accounting)
Ather Energy Private Limited
Equity Shares of Face Value of ` 1 each  100  100  -  0.20  -  0.20

Preference shares of face vaue of ` 10 each 
(Compulsorily Convertible into equity 
instruments)

 128,533  99,186  -  330.38  -  200.38

Add: Group's share of profit/(loss)  -  (125.63)  -  (47.97)
(including Goodwill on acquisition of interest 
` 117.05 crore (Previous Year 113.32 crore)

 -  204.95  -  152.61

Hero FinCorp Limited
Equity shares of Face Value of ` 10 each fully 
paid up

 47,032,574  47,032,574  -  1,026.29  -  1,026.29

Equity shares of Face Value of ` 10 each partly 
paid up

 5,399,319  - -  248.37 -  -

Add: Groups share of profit (net off dividend 
received)

-  618.73 -  526.99
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Units As at 
March 31, 

2020

Units As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current  Non-
current  Current  Non-

current 
(including Goodwill on acquisition of interest 
` 51.64 crore (Previous Year ` 53.20 crore)

 -  1,893.39  -  1,553.28
 -  2,098.34  -  1,705.89

9B. Investments
Category-wise investments
Investment in equity instruments  14.64  2.09  6.78  4.29
Investment in debentures/bonds  134.56  205.73  150.68  253.98
Investment in mutual funds  4,559.92  1,343.36  3,016.42  975.79

 4,709.12  1,551.18  3,173.88  1,234.06
Investments carried at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Quoted investments
Investment in equity instruments 
of Other Entities
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Face Value of ` 2 each  70,200  70,200  -  2.09  -  4.29
Face value of Bangladesh Takas 10 each
ACI Limited  1,150  -  0.02  -  -  -
Active Fine Chemicals Limited  650,000  500,000  0.71  -  1.09  -
AIBL 1st Islamic Mutual Fund  130,160  -  0.08  -  -  -
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.  101,440  -  0.13  -  -  -
Aman Feed Limited  165,000  -  0.39  -  -  -
Bangladesh Export Import Company Ltd.  10,000  -  0.01  -  -  -
Bangladesh Submarine Cable Company Ltd.  14,000  -  0.10  -  -  -
Baraka Power Limited  120,000  40,000  0.21  -  0.10  -
Bashundhara Paper Mills Ltd.  5,000  -  0.02  -  -  -
BBS Cables Limited  31,000  -  0.15  -  -  -
BRAC Bank Ltd.  25,000  -  0.07  -  -  -
British American Tobacco Bangladesh 
Company Limited

 11,500  -  0.93  -  -  -

BSRM Steels Limited  110,229  76,229  0.33  -  0.37  -
Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd.  80,000  -  0.42  -  -  -
Eastern Bank Ltd.  66,777  -  0.18  -  -  -
Export Import (Exim) Bank of Bangladesh Ltd.  455,000  -  0.39  -  -  -
Genex Infosys Ltd.  5,000  -  0.02  -  -  -
Global Heavy Chemicals Limited  26,000  20,000  0.07  -  0.06  -
Grameenphone Ltd.  24,500  -  0.52  -  -  -
Heidelberg Cement Bangladesh Ltd.  20,500  -  0.25  -  -  -
IFAD Autos Limited  140,000  90,000  0.48  -  0.64  -
Jamuna Bank Ltd.  1,070,624  -  1.62  -  -  -
Khulna Power Company Ltd.  50,000  -  0.20  -  -  -
LafargeHolcim Bangladesh Ltd.  30,000  -  0.10  -  -  -
Mercantile Bank Limited  567,500  190,000  0.64  -  0.25  -
Nahee Aluminium Composite Panel Ltd.  177,200  142,000  0.74  -  0.63  -
National Tubes Ltd.  2,500  -  0.02  -  -  -
One Bank Limited  22,000  20,000  0.02  -  0.02  -
Orion Pharma Ltd.  -  115,000  -  -  0.32  -
Pacific Denims Ltd.  15,000  -  0.01  -  -  -
Paramount Textile Ltd.  30,000  -  0.13  -  -  -
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Units As at 
March 31, 

2020

Units As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current  Non-
current  Current  Non-

current 
Reckitt Benckiser (BD) Ltd.  920  -  0.26  -  -  -
Ring Shine Textiles Ltd.  100,000  -  0.06  -  -  -
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd.  55,000  50,000  0.10  -  0.11  -
Shasha Denims Limited  104,100  -  0.20  -  -  -
Southeast Bank 1st Mutual Fund  39,450  -  0.03  -  -  -
Southeast Bank Limited  100,000  -  0.10  -  -  -
Square Pharmaceuticals Ltd.  78,500  62,583  1.20  -  1.38  -
The City Bank Limited  601,000  200,000  0.91  -  0.44  -
United Power Generation & Distribution 
Company Limited

 98,175  39,250  1.92  -  1.33  -

Uttara Bank Limited  350,680  -  0.82  -  -  -
Western Marine Shipyard Limited  71,000  20,000  0.08  -  0.03  -
Investment in equity instruments  14.64  2.09  6.78  4.29
Investment in debentures
Unquoted Investments
Investments carried at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investment in Associates
Ather Energy Private Limited
Face Value of ` 100 each
Compulsorily convertible debentures  -  66,320  -  -  130.00  -

 -  -  130.00  -
Quoted Investments
Investments carried at amortised cost
7.34% HUDCO – Maturity – 16.02.2023  250,000  250,000  -  25.23  -  25.22
7.18% IRFC -Maturity-19.02.2023  250,000  250,000  -  25.83  -  25.83
8.18% NHPC Tax Free Bonds-
Maturity-02.11.2023

 161,050  161,050  -  17.43  -  17.43

8.51% HUDCO Tax Free Bonds – Maturity – 
13.01.2024

 250,000  250,000  -  25.46  -  25.44

8.18% PFC Tax Free Bonds – Maturity – 
16.11.2023

 323,890  323,890  -  33.38  -  33.38

9.10% Shriram Transport Finance Company 
Limited TR-I SR -III 9.1 NCD – Maturity – 
12.07.2021

 250,000  -  -  25.77  -  -

Face Value of ` 1,00,000 each
6.70% IRFC Bonds -Maturity-08.03.2020  -  1,500  -  -  15.49  -
Face Value of ` 5,00,000 each
10.70% Tata Motors Finance Limited – 
Maturity – 28.04.2020

 138  138  7.59  -  -  7.61

10.70% Tata Motors Finance Limited-
Maturity-10.04.2020

 400  400  22.08  -  -  22.16

Face Value of ` 10,00,000 each
9.20% Bank of Baroda RR Perpetual BD 
09.10.2019

 -  50  -  -  5.19  -

8.11% HDB Financial Servies-
Maturity-04.06.2021

 250  -  -  26.63  -  -

8.50% SBI Series II 8.50 BD Perpetual-
Maturity-22.11.2024

 250  -  -  26.00  -  -
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Units As at 
March 31, 

2020

Units As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current  Non-
current  Current  Non-

current 
Zero Coupon Bonds
8.24% Rural Electrification Corporation Ltd. 
NCD @ ` 13,578 maturity ` 30,000 per bond – 
Maturity – 15.12.2020

 37,000  37,000  104.89  -  -  96.91

Investment in debentures/bonds  134.56  205.73  20.68  253.98
Investment in mutual funds
{include funds which are listed 
but not quoted}
Unquoted Investments
Investments carried at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Debt fund
Units of the face value of ` 10 each
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund
FMP – Series 82 – 1199 Days Plan L Direct 
Plan Cumulative

 70,000,000  70,000,000  -  83.17  -  76.31

FMP – Series 82 – 1135 Days Plan U Direct 
Plan Cumulative

 50,000,000  50,000,000  -  58.93  -  54.02

FMP Series 83 – 1105 Days Plan F Direct Plan 
Cumulative

 50,000,000  50,000,000  -  59.12  -  54.20

Blended Plan B – Direct Plan – Growth Option 
(Merged with Banking and PSU Debt Fund 
Direct Plan Growth)

 32,595,446  24,817,467  77.07  -  70.29  -

Banking and PSU Debt Fund-Direct Plan-
Growth

 21,659,649  -  51.21  -  -  -

Short-Term Fund – Direct Plan-Growth Option  77,651,149  -  344.51  -  -  -
Corporate Bond Fund -Direct Plan -Growth  23,824,272  -  51.25  -  -  -
Aditya Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund
Fixed Term Plan-Series PB (1190 days) – 
Direct Growth

 90,000,000  90,000,000  -  106.95  -  98.13

Fixed Term Plan – Series PZ (1120 days) – 
Direct Growth

 35,000,000  35,000,000  -  41.13  -  37.84

Fixed Term Plan-Series QB (1113 days)-Direct 
Growth

 50,000,000  50,000,000  -  59.21  -  54.32

Fixed Term Plan – Series RC (1295 days) – 
Direct Growth

 50,000,000  50,000,000  -  58.32  -  53.27

Corporate Bond Fund – Growth – Direct Plan  6,502,619  -  51.30  -  -  -
Nippon India Mutual fund (formerly 
Reliance Mutual fund)
Fixed Horizon Fund – XXX – Series 4-Direct 
Growth Plan

 -  30,000,000  -  -  38.48  -

Fixed Horizon Fund – XXXI – Series 5 – Direct 
Growth Plan

 -  5,000,000  -  -  6.13  -

Fixed Horizon Fund – XXXVII – Series 10 – 
Direct Growth Plan

 25,000,000  25,000,000  -  29.18  -  27.09

Fixed Horizon Fund – XXXVII – Series 12 – 
Direct Growth Plan

 40,000,000  40,000,000  -  47.34  -  43.34

Strategic Debt Fund – Direct Growth Plan  -  53,163,841  -  -  81.63  -
Invesco Mutual Fund (Formerly Religare 
Invesco Mutual Fund)
FMP-Sr.29 – Plan B (1150 Days) – Direct 
Growth

 6,000,000  6,000,000  7.45  -  -  6.92
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Units As at 
March 31, 

2020

Units As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current  Non-
current  Current  Non-

current 
FMP – Sr.33 – Plan D (1273 Days) – Direct Sub 
Plan Growth

 20,000,000  20,000,000  -  22.91  -  20.85

L&T Mutual Fund
Credit Risk Fund Direct Plan – Growth  -  43,776,843  -  -  95.10  -
SBI Mutual Fund
Dual Advantage Fund – Series XII – Direct – 
Growth

 -  15,000,000  -  -  19.37  -

SBI Corporate Bond Fund – Direct Plan – Growth  68,197,318  -  76.97  -  -  -
IDFC Mutual Fund
Fixed Term Plan Series 140 Direct Plan – 
Growth (1145 Days)

 50,000,000  50,000,000  -  59.10  -  54.18

Fixed Term Plan Series 144 Direct Plan – 
Growth (1141Days)

 50,000,000  50,000,000  -  58.77  -  53.87

Banking & PSU Debt Fund -Direct Plan- 
Growth

 72,144,804  -  129.60  -  -  -

Credit Risk Fund – Direct Plan – Growth  40,448,820  -  51.49  -  -  -
Kotak Mutual Fund
FMP Series 219 Direct – Growth  75,000,000  75,000,000  -  88.84  -  81.47
FMP Series 221 Direct – Growth  48,000,000  48,000,000  -  56.53  -  51.83
FMP Series 228 Direct – Growth  50,000,000  50,000,000  -  59.33  -  54.29
Credit Risk Fund – Direct Plan – Growth  21,678,713  -  50.86  -  -  -
HDFC Mutual Fund
FMP 1167 D January 2016(1) – Direct – 
Growth-Series-35

 -  15,000,000  -  -  19.24  -

FMP 1143 D March 2018(1) -Direct-Growth-
Series-39

 75,000,000  75,000,000  -  88.58  -  81.15

FMP 1147 D March 2018(1) – Direct-Growth 
– Series-39

 50,000,000  50,000,000  -  58.89  -  53.93

Low Duration Fund- Direct Plan- Growth 
Option

 11,713,250  -  51.78  -  -  -

Banking & PSU Debt Fund -Direct Growth 
Option

 76,391,860  -  128.53  -  -  -

Short-Term Debt Fund -Direct Plan- Growth 
Option

 44,931,502  -  102.84  -  -  -

Credit Risk Debt Fund -Direct -Growth  14,751,525  -  25.73  -  -  -
Units of the face value of ` 100 each
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund
Savings Fund – Direct Plan – Growth Option  7,429,165  -  290.01  -  -  -
Aditya Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund
Savings Fund – Growth – Direct Plan  2,654,976  -  106.42  -  -  -
Low Duration Fund – Growth – Direct Plan  5,645,928  -  289.96  -  -  -
Units of the face value of ` 1,000 each
Nippon India Mutual fund (formerly 
Reliance Mutual fund)
Low Duration Fund – Direct Growth Plan 
Growth Option (Formerly Reliance Money 
Manager Fund – Direct Growth Plan Growth 
Option)

 -  1,890,316  -  - 499.12  -

Invesco Mutual Fund (Formerly Religare 
Invesco Mutual Fund)
Short-Term Fund – Direct Plan Growth  626,087  1,299,935 175.94  - 332.54  -
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Units As at 
March 31, 

2020

Units As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current  Non-
current  Current  Non-

current 
Ultra Short-Term Fund – Direct Plan Growth 
(Formerly Medium-Term Bond Fund – Direct 
Plan Growth)

 1,065,859  1,398,253 225.22  - 275.28  -

Treasury Advantage Fund – Direct Plan 
Growth

 180,694  - 51.72  -  -  -

Kotak Mutual Fund
Corporate Bond Fund Direct Growth  185,317  -  51.15  -  -  -
PGIM India Mutual Fund (Formerly DHFL 
Pramerica Mutual Fund)
Fixed Duration Fund – Series AE – Direct Plan 
– Growth

 62,500  62,500  7.79  -  -  7.24

Fixed Duration Fund -Series AG-Direct Plan-
Growth

 100,000  100,000  12.40  -  -  11.54

Axis Mutal Fund
Banking & PSU Debt Fund – Direct Growth  798,515  -  154.99  -  -  -
DSP Mutual Fund
Low Duration Fund – Direct Plan – Grwoth  51,976,493  -  77.47  -  -  -
Edelweiss Mutual Fund
Edelweiss Mutual Bharat Bond ETF  3,000,000  -  -  307.06  -  -
Equity fund
Units of the face value of ` 10 each
Nippon India Mutual fund (formerly 
Reliance Mutual fund)
Arbitrage Fund – Direct Monthly Dividend 
Plan

 -  182,893,206  -  -  201.12  -

Arbitrage Fund – Direct Growth Plan Growth 
Option

 242,983,312  -  508.57  -  -  -

IDFC Mutual Fund
Arbitrage Fund – Monthly Dividend – Direct 
Plan

 -  102,862,654  -  -  135.27  -

Arbitrage Fund – Growth – (Direct Plan)  53,240,261  -  136.99  -  -  -
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund
Equity Arbitrage Fund – Direct Plan – 
Dividend

 -  115,635,024  -  -  167.57  -

Aditya Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund
Arbitrage Fund – Dividend – Direct Plan 
(Formerly Enhanced Arbitrage Fund – Direct 
Plan – Dividend)

 74,630,850  95,931,942  156.18  -  105.77  -

Axis Mutual Fund
Arbitrage Fund Direct Dividend  -  138,620,823  -  -  153.11  -
Liquid fund
Units of the face value of ` 100 each
ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund
Liquid Direct plan – Growth  5,769,464  -  169.49  -  -  -
Aditya Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund
Liquid Fund – Growth – Direct Plan (Formerly 
Cash Plus – Growth – Direct Plan)

 7,889,513  3,258,811  252.12  -  97.91  -

Units of the face value of ` 1,000 each
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Units As at 
March 31, 

2020

Units As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current  Non-
current  Current  Non-

current 
Nippon India Mutual fund (formerly 
Reliance Mutual fund)
Liquidity Fund – Direct Growth Plan Growth 
Option

 807,476  -  391.68  -  -  -

HDFC Mutual Fund
Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth  771,080  -  301.23  -  -  -
Axis Mutual Fund
Liquid Fund – Direct Growth  -  1,495,644  -  -  310.13  -
Kotak Mutual Fund
Liquid Direct Plan Growth  -  1,079,091  -  -  408.36  -
Investment in mutual funds  4,559.92  1,343.36  3,016.42  975.79
Total Investments  4,709.12  1,551.18  3,173.88  1,234.06

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current Non-Current  Current Non-Current

Aggregate book value of quoted investments  149.20  207.82  27.46  258.27
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  150.35  214.87  27.48  257.60
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments  4,559.92  3,441.70  3,146.42  2,681.68

Category-wise investment as per Ind AS 109 classification
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Current Non-Current  Current Non-Current

Unquoted
Investment in Mutual Funds  4,559.92  1,343.36  3,016.42  975.79
Investment in debentures  -  -  130.00  -
Quoted
Investment in equity instruments  14.64  2.09  6.78  4.29
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Quoted
Investment in bonds  134.56  205.73  20.68  253.98

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit and market risk, and fair value measurement, is included in Note 42.

Investments in associates
Details of investments in associates (carrying amount determined using equity method of accounting)

Name of associate  Principal activity

 Place of 
incorporation and 
principal place of 
business

 Proportion of ownership interest and 
voting rights held by the Company

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Hero FinCorp Limited Non-Banking Financial Company India 41.19% 41.19%

Ather Energy Private Limited Business of designing and manufacturing 
smart electric vehicles and associated 
charging infrastructure

India 35.10% 32.31%
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Also refer Note 41
Summarised financial information in respect of the Company’s material associates is set out below. The summarised financial 
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

Hero FinCorp Limited  As at
March 31, 2020

 As at
March 31, 2019

Non-current assets  13,447.88  10,386.27
Current assets  13,751.25  10,669.47
Non-current liabilities  (12,294.01)  (9,503.03)
Current liabilities  (10,433.80)  (7,910.85)

Hero FinCorp Limited For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Total revenue  3,799.86  2,518.47
Profit for the year  278.04  245.76
Other comprehensive income for the year  (0.74)  (1.36)
Total Comprehensive income for the year  277.30  244.39
Dividends received from the associate during the year 19.99  12.24

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate 
recognised in the consolidated financial statements

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Net assets of the associate  4,471.34  3,641.85
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the associate 41.19% 41.18%
Group's ownership interest in the associate  1,841.75  1,500.08
Add: Goodwill on acquisition  51.64  53.20
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate  1,893.39  1,553.28

Ather Energy Private Limited As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Non-current assets  326.60  237.65
Current assets 191.90  134.95
Non-current liabilities  (141.70)  (69.76)
Current liabilities  (126.40)  (181.23)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Revenue  48.80  11.72
Profit/(loss) for the year  (219.90)  (107.47)
Other comprehensive income for the year  (0.70)  (0.05)
Total Comprehensive income for the year  (220.60)  (107.52)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate 
recognised in the consolidated financial statements

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Net assets of the associate  250.40  121.61
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the associate 35.10% 32.31%
Group's ownership interest in the associate  87.90  39.29
Add: Goodwill on acquisition  117.05  113.32
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate  204.95  152.61
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10. LOANS (FINANCIAL ASSETS)
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Non-Current 
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees  22.15  21.92
Security deposits  45.53  38.20
Total  67.68  60.12
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees  20.67  23.22
Security deposits  3.08  1.86
Total  23.75  25.08

Note :- These financial assets are carried at amortised cost, unless otherwise stated.

Note :- The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment allowances related to Loans (Financial assets) is disclosed in Note 42.

11. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Non-Current 
Unsecured, considered good
Deposits due for maturity after 12 months from the reporting date  -  33.82
Total  -  33.82
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Derivatives instruments carried at fair value (forward contracts)  0.38  0.30
Interest accrued on deposits  0.85  0.28
Accrual of incentives from State Government  331.89  618.50
Other recoverables  30.93  35.11
Total  364.05  654.19

Note:- These financial assets are carried at amortised cost, unless otherwise stated.

Note:- The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment allowances related to other financial assets is disclosed in Note 42.

12. INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Advance income tax  1,420.69  2,454.86
Less: Provision for taxation  1,098.95  1,599.24
Total  321.74  855.62

13. OTHER ASSETS
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances  89.83  356.56
Prepayment land leases  -  245.22
Prepaid expenses  5.06  3.15
Balance with government authorities
- Excise duty and others  8.50  29.18
- VAT/Sales tax  18.28  42.35
Total  121.67  676.46
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Particulars  As at
March 31, 2020

 As at
March 31, 2019

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Prepayment land leases  -  3.24
Prepaid expenses  66.69  49.52
Advance to suppliers  81.06  130.97
Other advances  6.68  5.73
Balance with government authorities
- Excise duty  -  3.60
- Sales tax/VAT/Employee state insurance  95.43  43.23
- Goods and service tax (GST)  51.57  5.62
- Export incentive receivable  21.21  19.61
Total  322.64  261.52

14. INVENTORIES
 (lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2020

 As at
March 31, 2019

Raw materials and components  582.93  619.86
Goods in transit of raw materials and components  52.80  151.11
Work-in-progress  51.55  31.73
Finished goods
 Two-wheelers  425.73  278.78
 Spare parts  45.41  38.84
Stores and spares  98.34  104.62
Loose tools  25.56  24.59
Total  1,282.32  1,249.53

- The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note no. 3.12.

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Current
Trade receivables considered good – (Secured) **  63.04  35.22
Trade receivables considered good – (Unsecured) **  1,448.87  2,709.89
Trade receivables considered doubtful  71.32  20.37

 1,583.23  2,765.48
Less: Loss allowance  71.32  20.37
Total  1,511.91  2,745.11

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value. The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, 
and impairment allowances related to trade receivables is disclosed in Note 42.

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2020

 As at
March 31, 2019

Age of receivables
Within the credit period  519.01  1,301.93
Up to 6 months past due  982.25  1,422.81
More than 6 months but less than one year 25.92 10.46
More than one year 56.05 30.28
Total  1,583.23  2,765.48

** Include receivables from related parties (refer note 38)
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Cash on hand  0.14  0.10
Balances with banks
In current accounts  266.45  178.78
In deposit accounts  38.72  29.24
Cash and cash equivalents  305.31  208.12

17. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ABOVE
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Balances with banks
In dividend current accounts (earmarked accounts)  56.88  60.86
In deposit accounts*  73.22  34.92
Total  130.10  95.78

* Includes fixed deposits aggregating ` 25.00 crore with Dena Bank on February 18, 2014. Subsequent thereto, it was brought to the notice of the Company that 
money had been fraudulently withdrawn by pledging fictitious copies of such fixed deposit receipts with concerned bank by some individuals. The Company has 
filed a recovery suit which is pending in the honourable Delhi High Court against the bank. In the interim, the Bank has renewed the deposits (along with interest 
earned thereon).

18. SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Equity share capital

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2020

 As at
March 31, 2019

Authorised Equity shares capital
250,000,000 (as at March 31, 2019 - 250,000,000) Equity shares of ` 2 each  50.00  50.00
Total  50.00  50.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
199,739,368 (as at March 31, 2019: 199,726,884) Equity shares of ` 2 each  39.95  39.95
Total  39.95  39.95

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

(i)  Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Nos. ` in crore Nos. ` in crore
Opening Balance  199,726,884  39.95  199,711,455  39.94
Issued during the year ` # Current year ` 24,968* (previous year 
` 30,858*) – Employee Stock Option Plan (refer note 41)

 12,484  #  15,429  #

Closing Balance  199,739,368  39.95  199,726,884  39.95

* in absolute INR

(ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Nos. % holding in 
the class Nos. % holding in 

the class
Ms. Renu Munjal *  9,309,019 4.66%  9,309,019 4.66%
Mr. Suman Kant Munjal *  9,309,019 4.66%  9,309,019 4.66%
Mr. Pawan Munjal *  9,309,020 4.66%  9,309,020 4.66%
M/s. Bahadur Chand Investments (P) Ltd.  39,943,238 20.00%  39,943,238 20.00%
* Hold shares on behalf of Brijmohan Lall Om Prakash (partnership firm)
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On March 30, 2020 and March 31, 2020, the promoters of the Company have acquired certain shares of the Company. 
However, same was not reflecting in the relevant account of promoters as on March 31, 2020 and therefore not included in the 
shareholding pattern mentioned above. Details of shares acquired are as follows:

- Bahadur Chand Investments Private Limited, had purchased 90,000 equity shares (0.04%) on March 30 and 31, 2020 
increasing its total shareholding to 4,00,33,238 shares (20.04%).

- Pawan Munjal Family Trust, had purchased 1,58,000 equity shares (0.08%) on March 31, 2020.

- RK Munjal & Sons Trust, had purchased 8,000 equity shares (0.0%) on March 31, 2020.

- Mr. Suman Kant Munjal, Promoter, had purchased 20,000 equity shares (0.01%) on March 31, 2020 thereby increasing his 
shareholding to 91,250 shares (0.05%).

(iii) Shares options/Restricted stock units granted under the Company’s employee share option plan

Option Series
Share Options Outstanding (In Nos.)

Expiry DateAs at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

ESOP 2014  864  2,184 October 21, 2021
ESOP 2016  20,916  28,016 August 21, 2023
RSU 2016  -  4,047 August 21, 2023
ESOP 2017  21,826  27,016 October 31, 2024
RSU 2017  2,128  10,031 October 31, 2024
ESOP 2018  108,030  125,000 March 25, 2026
RSU 2018  5,580  17,760 January 31, 2026
ESOP 2019  93,425  - October 22, 2026
RSU 2019  5,210  - October 22, 2026

Also refer details of the employee stock option plan are provided in Note 41.

b) Preference share capital

Particulars  As at
March 31, 2020

 As at
March 31, 2019

Authorised Preference shares capital
4,00,000 (as at March 31, 2019 - 4,00,000) Cumulative convertible preference shares of ` 100 
each

 4.00  4.00

4,00,000 (as at March 31, 2019 - 4,00,000) Cumulative redeemable preference shares of ` 100 
each

 4.00  4.00

Total  8.00  8.00

Note: The Company has not issued preference share capital.

19. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
Capital reserves # #
Securities premium  18.40  13.98
General reserve  2,676.34  2,676.34
Share options outstanding account  15.44  9.59
Foreign currency translation reserve  4.09  (4.76)
Retained earnings  11,652.06  10,385.31
Total  14,366.33  13,080.46
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Nature and Description
(i)  Capital reserves:- The Company had transferred forfeited share application money to Capital reserve in accordance 

with the provision of the Companies Act, 1956. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(ii)  Securities premium:- Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii)  General reserve:- General Reserves are free reserves of the Company which are kept aside out of Company’s profits to 
meet the future requirements as and when they arise. The Company had transferred a portion of the profit after tax (PAT) 
to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv)  Share options outstanding account:- Stock option outstanding account is used to record the impact of employee stock 
option scheme. Refer note 41 for further detail of this plan.

(v) Foreign currency translation reserve:- Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations.

(vi)  Retained earnings:- Retained earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company till date, less transfer to 
general reserves, dividend (including dividend distribution tax) and other distributions made to the shareholders.

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

A. Capital reserves
 On shares forfeited (#in absolute INR 4,250)  #  #

 Securities premium account on forfeited shares reissued(## in absolute INR 25,500)  ##  ##

B. Securities premium
 Opening balance  13.98  8.30
 Premium on equity shares issued during the year@  4.42  5.68
Closing balance  18.40  13.98
@ Addition in securities premium represents premium on equity shares under various schemes amounting to ` 0.12 crore (Previous year 
` 1.98 crore) and ` 4.30 crore (Previous year ` 3.70 crore) transferred from share option outstanding account on 12,484 equity shares 
(Previous year 15,429 equity shares) issued and alloted during the year under ESOP scheme. Also refer note 41.

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

C. General reserve
 General reserve at the beginning and end of the year  2,676.34  2,676.34
D. Share options outstanding account *
 Opening balance  9.59  6.74
 Add: Net charge during the year  10.15  6.55
 Less: Transferred to securities premium on issue of shares  (4.30)  (3.70)
 Closing balance  15.44  9.59
 * Also refer note 41.
E. Foreign currency translation reserve
 Opening balance  (4.76)  (6.87)
 Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations  11.70  3.23
 Income tax effect  (2.85)  (1.12)
 Closing balance  4.09  (4.76)
F. Retained earnings
  Opening balance  10,385.31  9,247.01
 Add: Profit for the year  3,638.11  3,444.09
  Other Comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation net 

of income tax
 (32.46)  (18.43)

 Less: Appropriations
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Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

  Final dividend for Financial year 2018-19 [amount per share ` 32.0 (Financial Year 2017-18: 
` 40.0)]

 639.13 798.85

  Interim dividend for Financial year 2019-20 [amount per share ` 65.0 (Financial Year 2018-19: 
` 55.0)]

 1,298.31 1,098.50

 Corporate dividend tax  401.46  390.01
 Balance at end of year  11,652.06  10,385.31

In respect of the year ended March 31, 2020, the directors propose that a dividend of ` 25 per share (March 31, 2019: ` 32 per 
share) be paid on fully paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting and has not been included as liabilitiy in these financial statements. The proposed equity dividend is payable to all 
holders of fully paid equity shares. The total estimated equity dividend to be paid is 499.35 crore (March 31, 2019: ` 770.50 
crore) (including corporate dividend tax thereon of ` NIL (March 31, 2019: ` 131.37 crore)).

20. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
Opening balance  116.11  93.21
Additions during the year  17.47  17.55
Dividend paid during the year  (19.60)  (18.25)
Share of profit/(loss) for the year  26.62  23.60
Closing non-controlling interest  140.60  116.11

21. BORROWINGS
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2020
 As at

March 31, 2019
 Non-current
 Unsecured – at amortised cost
 Term loan
- from Banks  43.78  34.61
 Long-term maturities of finance lease obligation  -  89.90
 Secured – at amortised cost
 Term loan
- from Banks  0.24  0.33

 44.02  124.84
 Current
 Unsecured
 Loan repayable on demand
- from banks  165.88  183.68

 165.88  183.68

Lender As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019 Repayment terms

Unsecured – Non-current
Rupee Term Loans from ICICI Bank, India
(Rate of Interest range – I-MCLR one year + 05 basis points 
(Previous year: IMCLR one year +05 basis points to IMCLR one 
year + 55 basis points))

 -  2.17 18 equal quarterly installments 
of ` 0.72 crore beginning from 
September 7, 2016

Rupee Term Loans from HDFC Bank, India
(Rate of Interest range – I-MCLR one year + 05 basis points 
(Previous year: IMCLR one year +05 basis points to IMCLR one 
year + 55 basis points))

 33.01  10.00 14 equal quarterly installments 
of ` 2.36 crore beginning from 
September 26, 2021

Term loan from Bancolombia, Colombia
(Rate of interest DTF + 5.40%)

 10.77  22.44 Maturity date is in 2022, 
repayable in 84 monthly 
installments

Total  43.78  34.61



Hero MotoCorp Ltd.

240

Annual Report 2019-20

Notes forming part of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amount in crore of INR)

Lender As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019 Repayment terms

Finance lease obligation from Bancolombia, Colombia for 
vehicles, machinery and building
(Rate of interest – DTF + 5% - 6%)

 -  89.90 Repayable by October 21, 2028 in 
144 installments

Total  -  89.90
Secured – Non-current
Loan from ICICI Bank (Secured by charge on vehicles)
(Rate of interest – 8.90%)

 0.24  0.33 48 monthly installments of 
` 0.01 crore beginning from 
April 1, 2019

Total  0.24  0.33
Unsecured – current
Loan repayable on demand
Rate of Interest – range I-MCLR three month + 60 basis points 
or MCLR one year + 30 basis points (Previous year: I-MCLR six 
month + 60 basis points or Bank base rate + 50 basis points)

 45.58  24.58 Repayable on demand

Loan from SCB
Rate of interest – LIBOR + 2.9%

 20.16  44.40 Repayable within a period of 90 
days

Loan from CBC
Rate of interest – LIBOR + 2.5%

 4.31  - Repayable within a period of 
90 days

Loan from HSBC
Rate of interest – LIBOR + 2.9%

 -  71.56 Repayable within a period of 
90 days

Loan from Bancolombia repayable on demand
Rate of Interest – LIBOR + 4% (Previous year: LIBOR + 4%)

 89.13  43.13 Repayable on demand

Loan from Bancolombia repayable on demand
Rate of Interest – DTF + 5.4% (Previous year: DTF + 5.4%)

 6.70  - Repayable on demand

Total  165.88  183.68

The Group has not defaulted in repayment of any loan and interest thereon.

22. PROVISIONS
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2020
 As at  

March 31, 2019
Non-current
Employee benefits (Refer note (i) below)
 Compensated absences  21.35  19.45
 Gratuity  0.55  0.96
 Other employee benefits  8.61  8.00
Sub-total (A)  30.51  28.41
Warranties (Refer note (ii) below)  93.39  92.53
Sub-total (B)  93.39  92.53
Total (A+B)  123.90  120.94
Current
Employee benefits (Refer note (i) below)
 Compensated absences  5.25  5.20
 Gratuity  66.07  0.27
 Other employee benefits  20.39  0.37
Sub-total (A)  91.71  5.84
Warranties (Refer note (ii) below)  67.98  53.87
Sub-total (B)  67.98  53.87
Total (A+B)  159.69  59.71

(i) The provision for employee benefits includes compensated leaves, gratuity and vested long-term service reward.

(ii) Movement in warranties provisions
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 For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Opening balance  146.40  148.16
Additions during the year  148.27  85.99
Amount utilised during the year  (127.39)  (81.52)
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in the discount rate  (5.91)  (6.23)
Closing balance  161.37  146.40

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value as best estimate of the future economic benefits that will be 
required under the Group’s obligations for warranties under local sale of goods legislation. The estimate has been made on the 
basis of historical warranty trends and may vary as a result of new materials, altered manufacturing processes or other events 
affecting product quality. As at March 31, 2020, this particular provision had a carrying amount of ` 161.37 crore (March 31, 
2019: ` 146.40 crore). Were claims costs to differ by 10% from management’s estimates, the warranty provisions would be an 
estimated ` 16.14 crore higher or lower (March 31, 2019: ` 14.64 crore higher or lower).

23. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) /LIABILITIES (NET)
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2020
 As at  

March 31, 2019
Deferred tax liabilities
Property plant and equipments and intangible assets  414.14  558.94
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss  73.98  29.80
Investments in associate 128.36  110.58
Others 14.29  13.04
Sub-total (A) 630.77  712.36
Less: Deferred tax assets
Deferred revenue  60.14  43.22
Accrued expenses deductible on payment  27.20  9.35
VRS expenses u/s 35DDA  12.10  -
Right of use assets and lease liabilities  2.32  -
Others 56.43  46.91
Sub-total (B) 158.19  99.48
Total (A-B)  472.58  612.88

A. Movement of Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

 Particulars

 For the year ended March 31, 2020

 Opening  
balance

 Recognised in 
profit and Loss

 Recognised 
in Other 

comprehensive 
income

 Closing  
balance

Deferred tax liabilities
Property plant and equipments and intangible assets  558.94  (144.80)  -  414.14
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and 
loss

 29.80  44.18  -  73.98

Investments in associate  110.58 17.78  - 128.36
Others  13.04 1.25  - 14.29

712.36  (81.59)  - 630.77
Deferred tax assets
Deferred revenue  43.22  16.92  -  60.14
Accrued expenses deductible on payment  9.35  17.85  -  27.20
VRS expenses u/s 35DDA  -  12.10  -  12.10
Right of use assets and lease liabilities  -  2.32  -  2.32
Others  46.91 14.36  (4.84) 56.43

 99.48 63.55  (4.84) 158.19
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  612.88  (145.12)  4.84  472.58
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Particulars

 For the year ended March 31, 2019

 Opening  
balance

 Recognised in 
profit and Loss

 Recognised 
in Other 

comprehensive 
income

 Closing  
balance

Deferred tax liabilities
Property plant and equipments and intangible assets  492.75  66.19  -  558.94
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss  66.26  (36.46)  -  29.80
Investments in associate  87.53  23.05  -  110.58
Others  19.95  (6.90)  -  13.04
Deferred tax assets
Deferred revenue  43.88  (0.66)  -  43.22
Accrued expenses deductible on payment  13.08  (3.73)  -  9.35
Others  27.64  21.12  (1.85)  46.91
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  581.89  29.14  1.85  612.88

B. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
  Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, as it is not probable that the future taxable 

profit will be available against which the respective subsidiaries in its jurisdiction can use the benefits therefrom:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Gross  
amount

 Unrecognised 
tax effect

 Gross  
amount

 Unrecognised 
tax effect

Tax losses from HMC MM Auto Limited (will expire from March 31, 
2021 to  March 31,  2028)

 38.42  9.99  27.51  7.15

Unabsorbed depreciation losses from HMC MM Auto Limited (can be 
carried forward for indefinite period)

 32.22  8.38  23.76  6.18

Tax losses from HMCL Colmibia SAS (tax losses amounting to ` 72.66 
crore will be carried forward indefinitely, tax losses for ` 105 crore will 
expire in the next 12 years)

 178.39  58.87 137.18 45.27

24. TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2020
 As at  

March 31, 2019
Trade payables##

 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  8.60  -
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  3,119.02  3,438.24
Total  3,127.62  3,438.24
## Include payables to related parties (refer note 38).

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to the above trade payables is disclosed in Note 42.

Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro and Small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available 
with the Company.

Particulars  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 
of each accounting period;

 8.60  -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

 -  -

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year

 -  -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under MSMED Act, 2006

 -  -

The amount of interest accrued for unpaid principal at the end of each accounting year  -  -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

 -  -
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25. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2020
 As at  

March 31, 2019
Current
Current maturities of long-term borrowings  2.27  2.98
Capital creditors  136.58  102.93
Security deposits dealers and others  65.05  59.75
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  0.17  0.20
Unclaimed dividend*  56.89  60.87
Total  260.96  226.73

* Does not include any amounts outstanding as at March 31, 2020 which are required to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 42.

26. OTHER LIABILITIES
Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2020
 As at  

March 31, 2019
Current
Statutory remittances (contributions to provident fund, employee state insurance, withholding 
taxes, goods and service tax, excise duty, sales tax, service tax, etc.)

 161.12  195.17

Advance from customers  125.76  48.08
Deferred revenue  238.94  252.14
Others  5.64  5.43
Total  531.46  500.82

Contract balances
Contract liability is comprised of consideration received from customers against which services are yet to be provided reported 
as advance from customers disclosed as under:

Particulars March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Advance from customers – current  125.76  48.08
Deferred revenue  238.94  252.14

Revenue recognised from amount included in contract liabilities (advance from customers and deferred revenue) at the 
beginning of the year amounts to ` 48.08 crore and ` 227.34 respectively.

27. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
(a) Sale of products
  Two-wheelers [includes excise duty of ` 1.35 crore (Previous year ` 1.41 crore)]  25,323.48  30,005.18
 Components  4.83  3.12
 Spare parts  2,909.77  2,844.59

 28,238.08  32,852.89
(b) Income from services
 Dealers support services  46.20  28.66
 Goodlife programme  for customers  40.64  43.69
 Services – others  489.01  506.12

 575.85  578.47
(c) Other operating revenue
 Duty drawback and other incentives  30.57  35.32
 Incentive from State Governments  345.46  419.30
 Miscellaneous income  65.36  86.25

 441.39  540.87
Total  29,255.32  33,972.23
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28. OTHER INCOME
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
(a) Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
 Tax free bonds, debentures and other instruments classified as debt  24.88  19.77
 Deposit with bank and others  252.89  268.26
(b) Dividend income
 Dividend received on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss  48.27  71.76
(c) Profit on sale of investments*  136.07  144.61
(d) Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss  221.78  175.11
(e) Other non-operating income
 Exchange fluctuation  46.30  6.56
 Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments  0.37  0.66
Total  730.56  686.73

*After adjusting loss on sale of current investments aggregating ` Nil (previous year ` 0.18 crore)

29. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
Raw materials and components consumed:
Opening stock  770.97  558.86
Add: Purchase of raw materials, components and packing material  19,912.57  23,772.56

 20,683.53  24,331.42
Less: closing stock  635.73  770.97

 20,047.80  23,560.45
Less: Cash discount  43.52  56.99
Cost of materials consumed  20,004.29  23,503.46

30. CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
(a) Opening stock
 Two-wheelers  278.78  215.68
 Spare parts  38.84  37.19
 Work-in-progress  31.73  37.44

349.35 290.31
(b) Closing stock
 Two-wheelers  425.73  278.78
 Spare parts  45.41  38.84
 Work-in-progress  51.55  31.73

 522.69  349.35
Net (increase)/decrease in inventory  (173.34)  (59.04)
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31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
Salaries and wages  1,652.82  1,528.68
Contribution to provident and other funds  123.49  137.61
Employee stock compensation cost (refer note no. 41)  10.15  6.55
Staff welfare expenses  102.86  105.18
Total  1,889.32  1,778.03

Employee Benefit Plans
The details of various employee benefits provided to employees are as under:

A. Defined Benefit, Contribution and other plans

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

(a) Employer's contribution to provident fund and labour welfare fund  79.30  73.14
(b) Employer's contribution to superannuation fund  17.23  17.56
(c) Employer's contribution to gratuity fund *  23.41  41.65
(d) Employer's contribution to employee state insurance  3.55  5.26

 123.49  137.61

*In  addition to this contribution made amounting to ` 42.60 crore (previous year: ` 27.34 crore) is recognised as comprehensive expense.

B. Defined benefit plans:
  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Holding Company provides for gratuity, as defined benefit 

plan. The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to the employees at the time of separation from the service 
on completion of vested year of employment i.e. five years. The liability of gratuity plan is provided based on actuarial 
valuation as at the end of each financial year based on which the Holding Company contributes the ascertained liability to 
Life Insurance Corporation of India with whom the plan assets are maintained.

  These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, inherent interest rate risk, longevity 
risk and salary risk

Investment Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated using a discount 
rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 
Currently for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other 
debt instruments.

Interest Rate Risk The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the 
defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Longevity Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of 
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants 
will increase the plan's liability.

Salary Risk Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

  The present value of the defined obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the projected 
unit credit method.
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The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:-

Principal assumptions:

Funded

Gratuity Gratuity
 As at  

March 31, 2020
 As at  

March 31, 2019
Discount rate 6.60% 7.50%
Future salary increase 6.50% p.a. 6.50% p.a. for first year 

and 5.5% thereafter
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Withdrawal rate Up to 30 years: 3%  

from 31 to 44 years: 2%  
After 44 years: 1%

Up to 30 years: 3%  
from 31 to 44 years: 2%  

After 44 years: 1%
In service mortality Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality Ult.  
(2006-08)

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality Ult.  

(2006-08)

Principal assumptions:

Unfunded

Gratuity Gratuity
 As at  

March 31, 2020
 As at  

March 31, 2019
Discount rate 6.76% 7.65%
Future salary increase 5.50% 5.50%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Withdrawal rate Up to 30 years: 3%  

from 31 to 44 years: 2%  
After 44 years: 1%

Up to 30 years: 3%  
from 31 to 44 years: 2% 

 After 44 years: 1%
In service mortality Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality Ult.  
(2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality Ult.  

(2006-08)

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of this defined benefit plan are as follows:-

Particulars
Gratuity – Funded Gratuity – Unfunded

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Service cost:
 Current service cost  23.21  14.27  0.15  0.71
 Net Interest expense/(income)  -  -  0.05  0.04
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 
profit or loss

 23.21  14.27  0.20  0.75

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
  Return on plan assets (excluding amounts 

included in net interest expense)
 (0.74)  3.09  -  -

  Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in 
financial assumptions

41.56  17.99  0.05 -

  Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience 
adjustments

 1.65  6.30  0.08  0.04

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 
other comprehensive income

 42.47  27.38  0.13 0.04

Total  65.68  41.65  0.33  0.80
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The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is 
as follows: 

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Present Value of funded defined benefit obligation 318.03 265.59
Fair value of plan assets  252.35 265.59
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  65.68  -
Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obligation  0.94  1.23
Fair value of plan assets  -  -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  0.94  1.23

Net liability disclosed as follows(under Provisions – Note 22):

Gratuity

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Other employee benefits  66.07  0.55  0.27  0.96

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:-

Particulars
 Gratuity – Funded  Gratuity – Unfunded

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Opening defined obligation  265.59 220.52  1.23  0.45
Current service cost  23.21  14.27  0.15  0.71
Interest cost  18.69  17.01  0.05  0.04
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
  Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in 

financial assumptions
 41.56  17.99  0.05 -

  Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience 
adjustments

 1.65  6.30  0.08  0.04

Benefits paid  (32.67)  (10.50)  (0.62)  (0.01)
Closing defined benefit obligation  318.03  265.59  0.94  1.23

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Particulars
Gratuity

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Opening fair value of plan assets  265.59  220.52
Interest income  18.69  17.01
Remeasurement gain/(loss):
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)  0.74  (3.09)
Contribution  -  41.65
Benefit paid  (32.67)  (10.50)
Closing fair value of plan assets  252.35  265.59

The Holding Company makes annual contribution to Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). As LIC does not disclose the composition 
of its portfolio investments, break-down of plan investments by investment type is not available to disclose.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. 
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the year, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 50 basis points higher/(lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by ` 11.95 crore (increase 
by ` 12.85 crore) (as at March 31, 2019: decrease by ` 8.99 crore (increase by ` 9.63 crore).
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- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 0.5%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by ` 12.80 crore 
(decrease by ` 12.02 crore) (as at March 31, 2019: increase by ` 9.76 crore (decrease by ` 11.28 crore)).

Sensitivities due to change in mortality rate and change in withdrawal rate are not material and hence impact of such change 
is not calculated.

Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated 
using the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting year, which is same as that applied in calculating the defined 
benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Asset-Liability Matching Study
The Holding Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an Asset-Liability Matching (ALM) framework 
that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. 
Within the framework, the Holdong Company’s ALM objective is to match assets to the obligations by investing in securities 
with maturities that match the payments as they fall due.

Other disclosures
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2020

 As at  
March 31, 2019

Average duration of the defined benefit obligation (in years) 8.50 years 8.77 years

The Group expects to make a contribution of ` 65.68 crore (as at March 31, 2019 ` 16.55 crore) to the defined benefit plans 
during the next financial year.

The Expected maturity analysis of undiscontinued defined benefit liability is as follows:

Particulars Less than a 
year

Between
1 - 2 years

Between
2 - 5 years

Over
5 years Total

As at March 31, 2020 49.75 21.09 80.40 30.51 181.75
As at March 31, 2019 38.79 20.70 77.64 155.63 292.75

32. FINANCE COSTS
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
Interest cost on financial liability at amortised cost
- on dealers security deposits  2.47  2.23
- on borrowings  14.42  25.03
- on others  0.89  3.69
Unwinding of discount on provisions and lease liabilities  28.86  6.23
Total  46.64  37.18
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33. OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019
Stores and tools consumed  91.50  110.41
Packing, forwarding, freight etc.  952.14  1,199.92
Power and fuel  132.96  158.12
Rent (Refer note 7A)  25.02  53.25
Lease rent  -  39.33
Repairs and maintenance
 - Buildings  26.56  21.51
 - Plant and machinery  103.77  110.11
 - Others  10.08  9.17
Insurance charges  53.32  47.57
Rates and taxes  10.64  10.43
Royalty  5.62  0.19
Advertisement and publicity  738.60  831.06
Donations#  0.23  7.85
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility  130.61  101.95
Payment to auditors  2.53  1.79
Exchange fluctuation  21.94  5.18
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  8.66  6.47
Loss allowance on trade receivables  53.04  -
Miscellaneous expenses  1,105.56  1,015.63
Total  3,472.78  3,729.94
# Donation includes ` Nil crore (previous year: ` 7.00 crore) under Section  182 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Payment to auditors

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

(a) As Statutory Audit
 - Audit fee (including audit fees for the auditors of other entities of Group)* 1.47 1.03
 - Limited Review of unaudited financial results 0.65 0.45
 - Other certifications 0.12 0.16
(b) Tax audit fees 0.10 0.07
(c) Out of pocket expenses 0.19 0.08

2.53 1.79

*Paid to other auditors ` 0.65 crore (previous year - ` 0.38 crore)

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

(a) Gross amount required to be spent  96.55  93.72
(b) Amount spent for the purposes other than Construction/acquisition of assets in the Company  130.61  101.95

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(a) Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Current tax:
In respect of the current year  1,096.79  1,608.81
Deferred tax charge
In respect of the current year  (145.12)  29.14
Total income tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss  951.67  1,637.95
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(b) Income tax on other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations  10.68  9.58
Others  (4.84)  (1.85)
Total income tax benefit recognised in other comprehensive income  5.84  7.72

(c) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Profit before tax  4,611.08  5,104.30
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (previous year: 34.944%)  1,160.52  1,783.65
Impact of change in tax rates (from 34.944% in 2018-19 to 25.168% in 2019-20)  (127.40)  -
Additional deduction on research and product development cost  -  (41.14)
Additional deduction on employment generation u/s 80JJAA  (0.85)  (1.18)
Effect of income exempt/taxed on lower/higher rate  (85.08)  (122.07)
Effect of unused tax losses of subsidiaries not recognised as deferred tax assets 18.63  7.85
Others  (14.15)  10.84
Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss  951.67  1,637.95

35. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2020
For the year ended

March 31, 2019

Basic earnings per share (in `)  182.15  172.45

Diluted earnings per share (in `)  182.15  172.44
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic 
earnings per share are as follows.
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (` in crore) 3,638.11 3,444.09
Opening Balance  199,726,884  199,711,455
Effect of share options exercised  4,909  4,869
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 199,731,793 199,716,324
Effect of share options*  - 14,695
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 199,731,793 199,731,019

*Anti dilutive in the current year.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
Particulars As at

March 31, 2020
As at

March 31, 2019
a) Contingent liabilities
 In respect of excise and other matters 75.66 121.84
  The above matter are subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. The legal 

proceeding when ultimately concluded will not, in the opinion of management, have a material 
effect on the result of operations or the financial position of the Group.

  Additionally, the Group is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/or 
regulatory inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, including commercial matters 
that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business. The Group believes that none 
of these matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any material adverse 
effect on its financial statements.

  As at March 31, 2019, the Group was in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent 
Supreme Court Judgement in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition 
of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to 
provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

b) Commitments
  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 

for (Net of advances paid amounting to ` 92.38 crore (March 31, 2019 ` 359.04 crore))
434.44 753.33

37. SEGMENT REPORTING
  The Group primarily operates in the automotive segment. The automotive segment includes all activities related to 

development, design, manufacture, assembly and sale of vehicles, as well as sale of related parts and accessories. The board 
of directors of the Holding Company, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), 
evaluates the Group’s performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the 
Group as a single unit.

  Therefore, based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’, the Group’s business activity fall 
within a single operating segment, namely automotive segment . Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 
are not applicable.

Entity wide disclosure details as per Ind AS 108 on Operating segments are given below:
Particulars Domestic Overseas Total

Revenue from operations
2019-20  27,976.30  1,279.02  29,255.32
2018-19  32,698.71  1,273.52  33,972.23

Disclosure as per the requirement of Ind AS 115, Revenue:

Particulars
For the year ended March 31, 2020

India Outside India Total

Sale of products  26,973.21  1,264.87  28,238.08
Income from services  575.85  -  575.85
Other operating revenue  427.24  14.15  441.39
Total  27,976.30  1,279.02  29,255.32
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Particulars
For the year ended March 31, 2019

India Outside India Total

Sale of products  31,594.22  1,258.67  32,852.89
Income from services  578.47  -  578.47
Other operating revenue  526.02  14.85  540.87
Total  32,698.71  1,273.52  33,972.23
Non-current segment assets
As at March 31, 2020 6,654.64  331.29 6,985.93
As at March 31, 2019  5,942.60  352.98  6,295.58

(a) Domestic segment includes sales and services to customers domiciled in India.

(b) Overseas segment includes sales and services rendered to customers domiciled outside India.

(c)  Non-current segment assets includes property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including capital work-in-progress 
and intangible assets under development, and non-current other assets.

(d) There are no major individual customers whose revenue exceeds more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES UNDER IND AS 24
A. Parties in respect of which the Group Companies are associate
 Brijmohan Lall Om Prakash (Partnership firm)
 Bahadur Chand Investments Private Limited
 Marelli Europe S.p.A. (Formerly known as Magneti Marelli S.p.A, Italy)
 Magnetti Marelli UM Electronics Systems Pvt. Ltd. 
 Marelli (India) Pvt. Ltd.
 Marelli (China) Co. Ltd.
 Marelli Sistemas Automotivos Industria E Comercio Brasil Ltda
 Niloy Motors Limited; Bangladesh
 Nitol Motors Limited; Bangladesh
 Nitol Electronics Ltd.; Bangladesh
 Nitol Tours & Travels; Bangladesh
 NITS Services (Pvt.) Ltd. Bangladesh
 Nitol Machineries Ltd; Bangladesh
 Nitol Insurance Company Ltd; Bangladesh
 Woven Holdings LLC

B. Associate of the Group
 Hero FinCorp Limited

 Ather Energy Private Limited

C. For subsidiaries of the Holding Company - Refer Note 2.4
D. Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. Pawan Munjal - Chairman, Managing Director and Chief executive officer
Mr. Suman Kant Munjal - Director
Mr. Vikram Sitaram Kasbekar - Whole Time Director
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Gupta - Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Neerja Sharma - Company Secretary
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 Non-Executive and Independent Directors
 Mr. Pradeep Dinodia
 Gen. (Retd.) Ved Prakash Malik (ceased w.e.f. March 31, 2019)
 Dr. Pritam Singh (ceased w.e.f. March 31, 2019)
 Mr. M. Damodaran
 Mr. Ravi Nath (ceased w.e.f. July 29, 2019)
 Dr. Anand C. Burman (ceased w.e.f. July 29, 2019)
 Ms. Shobana Kamineni (ceased w.e.f. March 26, 2020)
 Mr. Paul B. Edgerley
 Dr. Jagmohan Singh Raju (Appointed w.e.f. November 15, 2018)
 Mrs. Tina Trikha (Appointed w.e.f. October 23, 2019)

 Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to control:
  A.G. Industries Private Limited, A.G Industries (Bawal) Pvt Limited, Rockman Industries Limited, Cosmic Kitchen Private 

Limited, Hero Mindmine Institute Private Limited, Hero Investcorp Private Limited, Hero Solar Energy Private Limited, S.R 
Dinodia & Co. LLP, BML Munjal University and Raman Kant Munjal Foundation

 List of other related parties – Post employment benefit plan of the Group
 Hero MotoCorp Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust

 Hero MotoCorp Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund Trust

 Refer Note 31 of information on transaction with the above-mentioned post employment benefits plan.

Transactions with the above related parties:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

a) Parties in respect of which the Group is an associate
 Dividend paid
 Brijmohan Lall Om Prakash (Partnership firm) 270.89 265.31
 Hero Investcorp Limited 8.48 8.30
 Bahadur Chand Investments Private Limited 387.45 379.46
 Marelli Europe S.p.A. (Formerly known as Magneti Marelli S.p.A, Italy)
 Investment in equity instruments during the year  8.00 6.62
 Purchase of goods  8.77 12.30
 Payment of development fee  1.91 1.19
 Purchase of property and other assets  - 0.79
 Royalty  1.01 0.18
 Expenses reimbursed  1.65 1.48
 Magnetti Marelli UM Electronics Systems Pvt. Ltd. 
 Purchase of goods 18.21  3.33

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Marelli (India) Pvt. Ltd.
Purchase of goods 0.14  0.65
Marelli (China) Co. Ltd.
Purchase of goods 8.16  3.20
Expenses reimbursed 0.26  -
Marelli Sistemas Automotivos Industria E Comercio Brasil Ltda
Purchase of goods 8.05  -
Sale of goods
Niloy Motors Limited  33.18  810.88
Nitol Motors Limited  0.04  0.53
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Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Nitol Insurance Company Ltd  0.02  -
Nitol Electronics Limited  0.01  -
Purchase of goods/services
Nitol Machineries Ltd 4.18  27.67
Nitol Insurance Company Ltd 0.84  1.01
Nitol Tours & Travels  -  0.04
Transfer on account of dealers collection
Niloy Motors Limited 886.41  26.88
Others
Nitol Motors Limited 0.76  45.31
Woven Holdings LLC USA
Investment in equity instruments during the year  9.14  14.06

Balance outstanding at the year end

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

- Trade Payable
Marelli Europe S.p.A. (Formerly known as Magneti Marelli S.p.A, Italy)  5.97  4.95
Magnetti Marelli UM Electronics Systems Pvt. Ltd.  15.00  0.86
Marelli Sistemas Automotivos Industria E Comercio Brasil Ltda  7.39  -
Marelli (India) Pvt. Ltd.  -  0.05
Marelli (China) Co. Ltd.  0.27  1.00
Nitol Machineries Ltd.  -  1.70
Niloy Motors Limited  27.78  3.68
- Capital creditor
Marelli Europe S.p.A. (Formerly known as Magneti Marelli S.p.A, Italy)  -  1.20
- Trade Receivable
Marelli Europe S.p.A. (Formerly known as Magneti Marelli S.p.A, Italy)  0.12  -
Niloy Motors Limited  0.03  -
Nitol Machineries Ltd.  0.83  -
Nitol Electronics Limited  0.01  -

b) Associates of the Holding Company

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Hero FinCorp Limited
Lease rental expenses  13.97  25.35
Dividend received  20.00  12.24
Dividend paid  0.01  0.01
Investment in equity instruments during the year  248.37  498.30
Expenses reimbursed  4.65  2.05
Rent received  0.06  0.06
Ather Energy Private Limited
Investment in Compulsory Convertible debentures* -  130.00

*During the Financial Year 2019-20, compulsorily convertible debebtures have been converted into complusory convertible preference shares.
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Balance outstanding at the year end

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

- Trade Payable
Hero FinCorp Limited  6.00  1.84

c) Key management personnel and their relative

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Managerial Remuneration/Sitting fees
Mr. Pawan Munjal  84.59  80.41
Mr. Vikram Sitaram Kasbekar  6.70  6.19
Mr. Suman Kant Munjal  0.18  0.18
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Gupta  4.77  4.53
Mrs Neerja Sharma  4.46  1.79
Dividend paid  2.79  2.74

Commission/ Sitting fees/ Expenses reimbursement to Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Mr. Pradeep Dinodia  1.18  0.95
Gen. (Retd.) Ved Prakash Malik  -  0.75
Dr. Pritam Singh  -  0.60
Mr. M.Damodaran  1.04  0.79
Mr. Ravi Nath  -  0.51
Dr. Anand C. Burman  0.08  0.09
Ms. Shobana Kamineni  0.35  0.17
Mr. Paul B. Edgerley  0.53  0.92
Dr. Jagmohan Singh Raju  0.60  0.08
Mrs. Tina Trikha  0.18 -

Balance outstanding at the year end

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

- Payables (including commission)  49.98  55.08

Category-wise break up of compensation to key management personnel during the year is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Managerial remuneration*
Short-term benefits 97.84 90.66
Post-employment benefits 2.31 1.76
Share-based payments 0.38 0.49

* Does not include provisions for incremental gratuity and compensated absences liabilities, since the provisions are based on actuarial valuations for the 
Group as a whole.

d) Enterprises over which key management personnel and their relatives are able to exercise control

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Purchase of raw materials and components etc.  2,595.64  3,155.12
Purchase of property, plant and equipments 34.13  36.96
Payment towards services etc. 4.17  4.78
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 19.94  13.21
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Balance outstanding as at the year end

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

- Payables  173.86  282.19

Significant related party transactions included in the above are as under:-

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Purchase of raw materials and components etc.
A .G. Industries Private Limited 810.40  997.95
Rockman Industries Limited  1,615.44  1,920.56
A.G Industries (Bawal) Pvt Limited  166.95  233.87
Purchase of Assets
Rockman Industries Limited 15.72  13.06
A.G. Industries Private Limited 18.40  20.09
Hero Solar Energy Private Limited  -  3.81
Payment for services etc.
BML Munjal University  2.95  1.65
Hero Mindmine Institute Private Limited  0.06  0.74
Hero Solar Energy Private Limited  0.44  -
A. G. Industries Private Limited  0.55  1.11
Rockman Industries Limited  0.17  0.25
S. R. Dinodia & Co. LLP  -  1.02
CSR
Raman Kant Munjal Foundation 4.94  2.93
BML Munjal University 15.00  10.28

Significant closing balances of related parties are as under:-

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

- Payables
A .G. Industries Private Limited  43.64  48.32
Rockman Industries Limited  127.05  220.54
A. G. Industries (Bawal) Pvt Limited  2.88  10.22

E. Terms and Conditions
  All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and 

within the ordinary course of business. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

39. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES:
 Expenses charged to revenue account

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Raw material consumption  14.86  9.22
Consumables  2.71  3.41
Employee benefits  205.64  198.66
Depreciation and amortisation  181.29  126.35
Others* 73.65  80.21
Total 478.15 417.86
* Includes intangible asset under development amounting to ` 0.05 crore (previous year: ` 0.02 crore) expensed off during the year.
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Capital expenditure For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Land  28.79  4.69
Building  11.45  0.04
Equipments  57.42  26.66
Furniture and fixtures  2.49  1.26
Software  5.33  8.41
Vehicles  6.15  4.26
Data processing  equipments  4.51  3.67
Intangible Assets  108.03  30.47

 224.17  79.45
Capital work-in-progress & Intangible Assets under development  22.34  93.56
Total  246.51  173.02

40. COVID-19
  The spread of COVID-19 has affected the business operations of the Group, post the lock down in various geographies. 

The Group has taken various measures in consonance with the Government advisories to contain the pandemic, which 
included closing of manufacturing facilities across the Group.

  Given the uncertainty of quick turnaround to normalcy, post lifting of the lock down, the Group has carried out a 
comprehensive assessment of possible impact on its business operations, financial assets, contractual obligations and its 
overall liquidity position, based on the internal and external sources of information and application of reasonable estimates. 
The Group does not foresee any significant incremental risk to the recoverability of its assets or in meeting its financial 
obligations over the foreseeable future, given early and required steps taken to contain, protect and mitigate the exposure.

  Pursuant to the relaxed guidelines, the Group has now resumed its operations, however, some of the staff continues to 
operate from home. Since the situation is continuously evolving, the impact assessed in future may be different from 
the estimates made as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. Management will continue to 
monitor any material changes arising due to the impact of this pandemic on financial and operational performance of the 
Group and take necessary measures to address the situation.

41.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
 Employee Stock Option Plan
  The Employee Stock Options Scheme titled “Employee Incentive Scheme 2014 – Options and Restricted Stock Unit” 

hereafter referred to as “Employee Incentive Scheme 2014” or “the Scheme” was approved by the shareholders of the 
Holding Company through postal ballot on September 22, 2014. The Scheme covered 49,90,000 options/restricted units for 
49,90,000 equity shares. The Scheme allows the issue of options/restricted stock units (RSU) to employees of the Holding 
Company which are convertible to one equity share of the Group. As per the Scheme, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee grants the options/RSU to the employees deemed eligible. The options and RSU granted vest over a period of 4 
and 3 years respectively from the date of the grant in proportions specified in the respective ESOP Plans. Options/RSU may 
be exercised by the employees after vesting period within 7 years from the date of grant. The fair value as on the date of 
the grant of the options/RSU, representing Stock compensation charge, is expensed over the vesting period.

 Details of the Stock Option/RSU issued under the Scheme

Plan Number of 
Options/RSU Grant date Expiry date Exercise  

Price `

Weighted Average Fair 
value of the Options at 

grant date `
ESOP 2014  23,110 22-Oct-14 21-Oct-21  2,159  1,228
ESOP 2016  41,290 22-Aug-16 21-Aug-23  2,469  1,324
RSU 2016  11,194 22-Aug-16 21-Aug-23  2  3,290
ESOP 2017  29,800 31-Oct-17 31-Oct-24  2,818  1,615
RSU 2017  15,769 31-Oct-17 31-Oct-24  2  3,663
ESOP 2018  125,000 25-Mar-19 25-Mar-26  2,033  1,138
RSU 2018  17,760 31-Jan-19 31-Jan-26  2  2,672
ESOP 2019  98,750 22-Oct-19 22-Oct-26  1,745  1,067
RSU 2019  5,210 22-Oct-19 22-Oct-26  2  2,308
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Fair value of share options/RSU granted during the year
The fair value of options/RSU granted is estimated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model after applying the key 
assumption which are tabulated below. The expected volatility has been calculated using the daily stock returns on NSE, based 
on expected life options/RSU of each vest. The expected life of share option is based on historical data and current expectation 
and not necessarily indicative of exercise pattern that may occur.

Inputs in to the pricing model
Option Plan

 ESOP 2019  RSU 2019  ESOP 2018  RSU 2018

Weighted Average Fair value of option/RSU  1,067  2,308  1,138  2,672
Weighted Average share price  2,637  2,637  2,886  3,034
Exercise price  1,745  2  2,033  2
Expected average volatility 22.54% 22.49% 22.96% 23.17%
Option life 7 Years 7 Years  7 Years  7 Years
Dividend yield 2.92% 2.92% 2.78% 2.78%
Average risk-free interest rate 6.57% 6.57% 7.00% 7.23%

Movements in share options during the year
For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the year ended March 31, 2019

Number of options Weighted average 
exercise price ` Number of options Weighted average 

exercise price `
Outstanding at the beginning of the year  182,216  2,218  67,724  2,604
Granted during the year  98,750  1,745  125,000  2,033
Forfeited during the year  35,371  2,195  2,414  2,686
Exercised during the year  534  2,159  8,094  2,449
Outstanding at the end of year  245,061  2,031  182,216  2,218
Exercisable at the end of year  41,944  2,304  10,864  2,547

Movements in RSU during the year Number 
 of RSU

Weighted average 
exercise price `

Number 
 of RSU

Weighted average 
exercise price `

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  31,838  2.00  21,413  2.00
Granted during the year  5,210  2.00  17,760  2.00
Forfeited during the year  12,180  2.00  -  2.00
Exercised during the year  11,950  2.00  7,335  2.00
Outstanding at the end of year  12,918  2.00  31,838  2.00
Exercisable at the end of year  1,674  2.00  -  -

Share options exercised during the year

Option Plan

For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the year ended March 31, 2019

No. of options 
exercised

Weighted Share 
price at exercise 

date `

No. of options 
exercised

Weighted Share 
price at exercise 

date `
ESOP 2014  534  2,355  1,962  2,660
ESOP 2016  -  -  4,848  2,883
RSU 2016  4,047  2,675  3,036  2,883
ESOP 2017  -  -  1,284  2,681
RSU 2017  7,903  2,612  4,299  2,685
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Share options/RSU outstanding at end of the year

Options/RSU Plans
Options 

outstanding as at 
March 31, 2020

Options 
outstanding as at 

March 31, 2019

Remaining 
contractual life (in 

Years) as on  
March 31, 2020

Remaining 
contractual life (in 

Years) as on  
March 31, 2019

Exercise  
Price `

ESOP 2014  864  2,184  1.56  2.56  2,159
ESOP 2016  20,916  28,016  3.39  4.39  2,469
RSU 2016  -  4,047  3.39  4.39  2
ESOP 2017  21,826  27,016  4.59  5.59  2,818
RSU 2017  2,128  10,031  4.59  5.59  2
ESOP 2018  108,030  125,000  5.98  6.98  2,033
RSU 2018  5,580  17,760  5.84  6.84  2
ESOP 2019  93,425  -  6.56  -  1,745
RSU 2019  5,210  -  6.56  -  2

 257,979  214,054

During the the year ended March 31, 2020, the Group recorded an employee stock compensation expense of ` 10.15 crore 
(previous year: ` 6.55 crore) in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the balance in share options outstanding account as at 
March 31, 2019 is ` 15.44 crore (previous year: ` 9.59 crore).

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
42.1 Capital Management
  The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising 

the return to stakeholders through efficient allocation of capital towards expansion of business, optimisation of working 
capital requirements and deployment of surplus funds into various investment options.

  The Management reviews the capital structure of the Group on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Management 
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with the movement in the working capital.

The following table summarises the capital of the Group:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Debt  212.17  311.40
Share capital  39.95  39.95
Equity reserves  14,366.33  13,080.46
Total Equity  14,406.28  13,120.41
Gearing Ratio 1.47% 2.37%

Categories of financial instruments

Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Non-current
Investments  1,345.45  980.08
Current
Investments  4,574.56  3,153.20
Financial assets at amortised cost
Non-current
Investments 205.73 253.98
Loans  67.68  60.12
Others  -  33.82
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Particulars As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Current
Investments  134.56  20.68
Trade receivables  1,511.91  2,745.11
Cash and bank balances  435.41  303.90
Loans  23.75  25.08
Other financial assets  364.05  654.19
Total  8,663.10  8,230.15
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Non-current
 Long-term borrowings  44.02  124.84
 Lease liabilities  207.62 -
Current
Short-term borrowings  165.88  183.68
Lease liabilities  33.46  -
Trade payables  3,127.62  3,438.24
Other financial liabilities  260.96  226.73
Total  3,839.56  3,973.48

42.2 Fair value measurements
  The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 

valuation techniques:

 The following is the basis of categorising the financial instruments measured at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3:

  Level 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities.

  Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within 
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

  Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market 
data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions 
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they 
based on available market data.

 Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
  There are certain Group’s financial assets which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. 

Following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined:

Fair value as at March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Non-current
Investments in mutual funds  -  1,343.36  -
Investments in equity instruments  2.09  -  -
Current
Investments in mutual funds  4,532.28  27.64  -
Investments in equity instruments  14.64  -  -
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Fair value as at March 31, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Non-current
Investments in mutual funds  -  975.79  -
Investments in equity instruments  4.29  -  -
Current
Investments in mutual funds  2,952.57  63.85  -
Investments in equity instruments  6.78  -  -
Investments in Debentures/Bonds  -  -  130.00

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Except as detailed out in the following table, the management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and 
financial liabilities recognised in the financial instruments approximate their fair values:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Carrying 
amount Fair value Carrying 

amount Fair value

Financial assets at amortised cost
Non-current
Investments in bonds 205.73  212.78  253.98  253.31
Current
Investments in bonds  134.56  135.71  20.68 20.70

Fair value hierarchy

March 31, 2020  
Level 2

March 31, 2019  
Level 2

Financial assets at amortised cost
Non-current
Investments in bonds  212.78  253.31
Current
Investments in bonds  135.71 20.70

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an 
asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between the market participants. The following methods and 
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

- Investments traded in active markets are determined by reference to quotes from the financial institutions - Net asset value 
(NAV) for investments in mutual funds declared by mutual fund house, quoted price of equity shares in the stock exchange etc.

- The fair value of bonds is based on direct market observable inputs.

- Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current financial assets, trade payables, 
current lease liabilities, current borrowings and other current financial liabilities: Fair value approximate their carrying 
amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these instruments.

- The Company’s non current lease liabilities, non current borrowings and non current financial assets are measured at 
amortised cost, which approximates the fair value as on the reporting date.

- Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent 
limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented 
above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Group could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of 
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respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be 
different from the amounts reported at each year end.

 - There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

42.3 Financial risk management objectives and Policies
Financial risk management objectives
The Group’s Corporate Treasury function monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group. 
These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments, diversification of investments, 
credit limit to exposures, etc., to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial instruments is governed by the Group’s policies on 
foreign exchange risk and the investment. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative 
financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a 
change in the price of a financial instrument. The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates risk/liquidity which impact returns on investments. The Group enters 
into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk including export receivables and import 
payables. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations 
arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are as follows.

Foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2020 Amount in  
USD

Amount in  
EURO

Amount in  
JPY

Amount in  
SGD

Amount in 
Chinese Yuan 

(RMB)
Trade Receivables 2.11  -  -  -  -
Trade Payables 2.63  0.23  0.00  0.01  0.07
Capital Creditors 0.18  0.04  26.72  -  -
Forward cover-Bought 1.01 - - - -

Foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2019 Amount in USD Amount in EURO Amount in JPY Amount in SGD
Amount in 

Chinese Yuan 
(RMB)

Trade Receivables 2.09  -  -  -  -
Trade Payables 3.86  0.07 0.40  - 0.10
Forward cover-Bought 0.93  -  -  -  -
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the ` against the relevant foreign currencies.
(+)(-) 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and 
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis 
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 
5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the ` strengthens 
5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the ` against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable 
impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Currency
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

5% decrease 5% increase 5% decrease 5% increase

Receivable  7.97  (7.97)  7.21  (7.21)
Payable
USD  (9.93)  9.93  (13.33)  13.33
JPY  -  -  (0.01)  0.01
Euro  (0.96)  0.96  (0.29)  0.29
SGD  (0.01)  0.01  -  -
RMB  (0.04)  0.04  (0.05)  0.05
Capital Creditors
USD  (0.67)  0.67  -  -
JPY  (0.94)  0.94  -  -
EUR  (0.14)  0.14  -  -
Forward cover-Bought  3.81  (3.81)  3.21  (3.21)
Impact on profit or loss as at the end of the reporting period  (0.91)  0.91  (3.26)  3.26
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period  (0.68)  0.68  (2.12)  2.12

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure 
at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year/in future years.

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. 
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial 
loss from defaults. The Group’s exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously 
monitored and spread amongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed 
and approved by the management of the Group.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, investments 
in debt instruments/bonds, trade receivables, loans and advances and derivative financial instruments. None of the financial 
instruments of the Group result in material concentrations of credit risks.

The Group write-off the receivable in case of certainity of the irrecoverability.

Balances with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end. In other financial assets that are not past dues and not 
impaired, there were no indication of default in repayment as at the year end.

The age analysis of trade receivables as of the balance sheet date have been considered from the due date and disclosed in the 
note no. 15 above.
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The Group has used a practical expedient and analysed the recoverable amount of receivables on an individual basis by 
computing the expected loss allowance for financial assets based on historical credit loss experience and adjustments for 
forward-looking information.

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Balance at beginning of the year  20.37 28.94
Add: Provided during the year  53.04  -
Less: Amounts written back  2.09  8.57
Balance at the end of the year  71.32  20.37

Other price risks including interest rate risk
The Group has deployed its surplus funds into various financial instruments including units of mutual funds, bonds/debentures, 
etc. The Group is exposed to price risks arising from investments in these funds. The value of these investments is impacted by 
movements in interest rates , liquidity and credit quality of underlying securities.

Price sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses has been determined based on the exposure to price risks at the end of the reporting period. If prices 
had been 1% higher/lower:

The profit for the year ended March 31, 2020 would increase/decrease by ` 59.03 crore (for the year ended March 31, 2019: 
increase/decrease by Rs. 39.92 crore).

Liquidity risk and interest rate risk on financial liabilities
Liquidity risk represents the inability of the Group to meet its financial obligations within stipulated time. To mitigate this risk, 
the Group maintains sufficient liquidity by way of readily convertible instruments and working capital limits from banks.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on the financial liabilities arising out of current and non current 
borrowings with floating interest rates. These borrowings expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the 
Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments  As at  
March 31, 2020

 As at  
March 31, 2019

Borrowings  212.17  311.50

The profit for the year ended March 31, 2020 would increase/decrease by Rs.2.62 crore (for the year ended March 31, 2019: 
increase/decrease by Rs. 2.67 crore) for a 1% increase/decrease in interest rate on average financial liabilities during the 
respective year.

The Group has lease liabilities which have been accounted with incremental borrowing rate and are therefore not subject to 
interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of 
a change in market interest rates.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities:
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting 
date on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2020

Less than 1 year 1 year to 5 year  More than 5 year Total

(i) Borrowing  165.88  44.02  -  209.90
(ii) Trade payables  3,127.62  -  -  3,127.62
(iii) Other financial liabilities  260.96  -  -  260.96
(iv) Lease liabilities  45.62  156.88  176.13  378.63
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Particulars
As at March 31, 2019

Less than 1 year 1 year to 5 year  More than 5 year Total

(i) Borrowing  183.68  32.88  91.96  308.52
(ii) Trade payables  3,438.24  -  -  3,438.24
(iii) Other financial liabilities  226.73  -  -  226.73
(iv) Lease liabilities  -  -  -  -

The surplus funds with the Group and operational cash flows will be sufficient to dispose the financial liabilities with in the 
maturity period.

43.  Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013:

Name of the Entity

Net Assets i.e. total asset 
less total liabilities Share in profit/ (loss) Share in other comprehensive 

income
Share in total comprehensive 

income

As % of 
Consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount (` 
in crores)

As % of 
Consolidated 

Profit or 
(Loss)

 Amount 
(Rs in 

crores)

As % of other 
comprehensive 

income

 Amount 
(Rs in 

crores)

As % of total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount 
(Rs in 

crores)

Parent Hero MotoCorp 
Limited

95.24%  14,136.40 98.44%  3,633.26 99.59%  (31.78) 98.43%  3,601.48

Subsidiaries Indian
HMC MM Auto 
Limited

0.20%  30.40 -0.32%  (11.91) 0.41%  (0.13) -0.33%  (12.04)

Foreign
HMCL Netherlands 
BV

2.20%  326.76 0.52%  19.03  -  - 0.52%  19.03

HMCL Colombia 
SAS

0.28%  41.30 -1.12%  (41.30)  -  - -1.13%  (41.30)

HMCL Niloy 
Bangladesh Limited

1.75%  259.91 2.36%  87.28  -  - 2.39%  87.28

HMCL (NA) Inc. 0.00%  - 0.00%  (0.03)  -  - 0.00%  (0.03)
HMCL Americas Inc. 0.16%  23.69 0.01%  0.30  -  - 0.01%  0.30
HMCL TechCenter 
Germany Gmbh

0.17%  25.10 0.12%  4.39  -  - 0.12%  4.39

Total 100.00% 14,843.56 100.00%  3,691.02 100.00%  (31.91) 100.00%  3,659.11
Adjustments arising 
out of consolidation

 (2,395.02)  (66.48)  14.16  (52.32)

Non-controlling 
interest

 (140.60)  (21.30)  (5.32)  (26.62)

Associates * Indian
Hero FinCorp 
Limited

13.14%  1,893.39 3.08%  112.04 1.29%  (0.30) 3.09%  111.74

Ather Energy 
Private Limited

1.42%  204.95 -2.12%  (77.17) 1.02%  (0.24) -2.14%  (77.41)

Total 14,406.28  3,638.11  (23.61)  3,614.50

* Investments accounted as per equity method
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44.  The Group’s borrowing facilities, comprising fund based and non-fund based limits from various bankers, are secured by 
way of hypothecation of inventories, receivables, movable assets and other current assets.

45.  The Holding Company had deposited and created provision for “National Calamity Contingent Duty” (‘NCCD’) including 
applicable cess in its Haridwar plant during prior years, while contesting the same on the ground that NCCD is in nature of 
excise duty and should be covered by Area based exemption. Pursuant to favourable order from Hon’ble Supreme Court , 
the provision has been reversed as exceptional item during the current year ended March 31, 2020.

46.   The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during November 8, 2016 to December 30, 
2016 has not been made in these financial statements since the requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 
March 31, 2020.

47.  During the current year ended March 31, 2020, the Holding Company had introduced a voluntary retirement scheme 
(VRS) and the Holding Company had considered an expense of ` 60.l l crore for employees who have accepted to be part 
of VRS as exceptional item in the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For B S R & Co. LLP Hero MotoCorp Limited
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Pawan Munjal M. Damodaran
No.: 101248W/W-100022 Chairman, Managing Director & CEO Chairman Audit Committee

DIN: 00004223 DIN: 02106990

Manish Gupta Niranjan Kumar Gupta Pradeep Dinodia Neerja Sharma
Partner Chief Financial Officer Non-Executive Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 095037 DIN: 00027995
UDIN: 20095037AAAABP4238
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: June 9, 2020 Date: June 9, 2020
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Part “B”: Associates
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

Sr. 
No. Name of Associates*** Hero FinCorp Limited Ather Energy  

Private Limited
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2020
2 Shares of Associate held by the Company on the year end

No.  52,431,893  128,633
Amount of Investment in Associates (` in crore)  1,274.66  330.58
Extend of Holding % 41.19% 35.10%

3 Description of how there is significant influence Equity holding more 
than 20% but less  

than 50%

Equity holding more 
than 20% but less  

than 50%
4 Reason why the associate is not consolidated - -
5 Networth attributable to Shareholding

as per latest audited Balance Sheet (` in crore)  1,841.75  87.90
6 Profit/(Loss) for the year*

i. Considered in Consolidation  111.74  (77.41)
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation**  166.30  (142.49)

* Profit/Loss include necessary adjustment on account of dividend distribution tax.

** Represent portion of Profit attributable to other shareholders.

*** There are no associate or joint venture which have been liquidated or sold during the year.




